Suncorp

FERE AR A
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(STOCK CODE:1063) ( B Z#43% : 1063)

2027

ANNUAL REPORT

F &




Directors’ Statement

EERE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EREwm AT

Corporate Information

NAEER

Details of Directors and Chief Executives

EEREZITBRAEHE

Corporate Governance Report
PEERWRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g MERRE

Directors’ Report
EFEEeRE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ B AR E

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

FEBRmMEMEEmKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAREEDE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A s B2
%T\E\Iﬁi/m;%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

Financial Summary

MBEHE

Contents

SE>S

13
15
16
35
57
66

75

77
79
80
82

196

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 47



02

Director’s Statement

EEHE

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or
the “Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of review, the Group mainly engaged
n (i) the sales and marketing of telephone and related
products; (ii) the processing and trading of used
computer-related components business; (iii) the money
lending business; (iv) the securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and (v) the B2B cross-border
e-commerce business.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately HK$200.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.1% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$173.7
million in 2020. In relation to the Group’s revenue,
approximately 5% resulted from sales of telephone
and related products, approximately 40.8% results
from the processing and trading of used computer-
related components, approximately 10.1% resulted
from interest income earned from money lending
business, approximately 1.0% contributed from securities
brokerage, placing and underwriting business and
approximately 43.2% contributed by B2B cross-border
e-commerce business.
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Gross profit from operation for the year under review was
approximately HK$25.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.2% as compared with the gross profit
of approximately HK$25.6 million in 2020. The Group's
net loss for the year was approximately HK$58.8 million,
which was mainly due to the provision for expected credit
loss ("ECL"”) on trade, other and loan receivables of
approximately HK$68.3 million recognised during 2021.

The Group recognises impairment loss allowance for ECL
on loan receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Group recognises lifetime ECL
for loan receivables. The ECL on these loan receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.
The Group had liaised with the borrowers and assess
their financial status and the recoverability of each
loan. In view of the global economic condition under
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group assessed that the
probability of default of certain borrowers were relatively
high.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, interest income
earned from money lending business was approximately
HK$20.1 million.
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Director’s Statement

EEHE

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the highly unpredictable business environment,
we are evaluating different business segments within the
Group and reposition our strategy and business operation
in more optimistic business segments. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the revenue derived from our B2B
cross-border e-commerce segment has expanded by
approximately 5.8% from approximately HK$81.7 million
to approximately HK$86.4 million as compared to the
year 2020. The outbreak of COVID-19 has led to more
e-commerce business activities. On the other hand, the
Board expects that the future development in sales of
residential telephones and related products will be limited
and the market will be declined due to the evolution
of technology and the change in consumer behaviours.
Therefore, we will continue to deploy more resources to
the e-commerce business in the future.

The Group will continue to seek potential investment
and business opportunities for broadening its income
stream and further development of the existing business
segments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year.

Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$200.0 million
which represented an increase of approximately 15.1% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The gross profit for the year under review was
approximately HK$25.3 million as compared to
approximately HK$25.6 million for the previous year.

During the year, the B2B cross-border e-commerce
business continued to contribute a significant percentage
to our revenue. We continue to be optimistic at
this business segment and will capture more market
opportunities as and when appropriate. On the other
hand, the sales and marketing of electronic equipment
and related products was still an important source of
income of the Group. In addition, the financial arm of
the Group comprising of securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and money lending business
also contributed to the revenue of the Group during the
year. The revenue, the gross profit and net loss for each
business segment for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out as below:
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Provision of
securities
brokerage,
placing and
Used underwriting B2B
Telephones computer- services cross-border
and related related Rt e-commerce
equipment  components FHER Money TLEY
BEER —“FEK RER lending EEE
HERE HBRAH BHERY HE BETEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET
Revenue ey 10,007 81,503 2,004 20,109 86,344
Gross profit EH 25 2,001 1,962 20,109 1,246
Net (loss)/profit (BBFE) /7 (999) 284 (2,825) (61,884) 612
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R ST T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current ratio BNt X
Gearing ratio (defined as the total

borrowings divided by total equity)  #2fE B A BEZ

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash on hand
of approximately HK$52.9 million, net current assets
of approximately HK$258.4 million, total assets of
approximately HK$329.0 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$257.0 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The money lending business of the Group is operated
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is
a licensed money lender carrying on business under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163). We mainly provides
unsecured and secured loan financing to individual and
corporate customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of
the total outstanding loan receivables is HK$119.0 million
with 8-10% interest rate and all loan receivables are
recoverable within 1 year.

During the year, the amount for the largest borrower and
the five largest borrowers in aggregate is HK$27.7 million
and HK$77.7 million accounted for approximately 23.2%
and 65.3% of the total loan receivables of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group recognises impairment loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“"ECL") on loan receivables. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
The Group recognises lifetime ECL for loan receivables.
The ECL on these loan receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate. The Group had
liaised with the borrowers and assess their financial status
and the recoverability of each loan. In view of the global
economic condition under the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group assessed that the probability of default of certain
borrowers were relatively high.

We would require the loan applicants to provide income
proof/documents and other relevant proof for loan
assessment proving ownership of specific assets. We
would also conduct background search on all loan
applicants.

In determining the terms of loans, the Group will
analyse the cost of providing the particular loan, credit
and other business risks of the loan, expected rates of
return, general market conditions, our market position,
the prevailing market interest rates and the interest rates
charged by our competitors for similar loan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

After drawdown of loan, the loan agreement will be
filed with the loan documents properly. Periodical review
will be carried out by us. We will assess the recovery
of the loan regularly based on the financial status and
background, repayment ability of the borrowers, as well
as the repayment and default history of the borrowers.
As a part of debt collection procedure, we would contact
the borrowers periodically to update the repayment status
and assess the recoverability.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2021, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$600,000,000 divided into
100,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.006 each. The
authorised share capital had no change during the year.

Issued share capital

As at 1 January 2021, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$5,477,619 divided into 912,936,566
shares of HK$0.006 each.

On 2 August 2021 upon the completion of the placing
of new shares under the specific mandate, the Company
had issued 580,000,000 new shares.

As at 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of the

Company was HK$8,957,619 divided into 1,492,936,566
shares of HK$0.006 each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group's
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 23 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent,
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
on a best effort basis, up to 580,000,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share to not
less than six places who and whose beneficial owners are
independent third parties (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the specific
mandate.

The Placing was completed on 2 August 2021. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses) from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$56.2 million. The net proceeds were
intended to be used for the further development and
operations of the virtual asset trading platform of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R ST T

As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds had been

utilised as follows:

Use of net proceeds

FERERREAR

Web application development of
the virtual asset trading platform
EREER ST anBRERRE
Acquisition of equipment and the related
installation and technical support services fees
BERBRABRE LB BREE
Cloud infrastructure and professional
network management services fee
EARRBLEXBRERERKE
Staff costs and consultancy fees for operational
and technical staff and external consultants
BERRMABUARINMFERNE TRER
ERE
Digital and data securities services fee
AFREBRFREE
Working capital in operating the virtual
asset trading platform, including but
not limited to purchasing digital assets
inventories and purchasing insurance
EEEREERHTAMEEES BR
ETRREEUFEEREREERR

Total
@

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #rigRHxBER A

Utilised
amount for
the year ended
31 December

o

I
EE

Unutilised
amount as at

2021 31 December

BE-Z--F 2021
t=A=+-A R=%B=-%

Allocation tEE  +ZBA=1-H
bl EEASE ABESHE

HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET
18.0 1.6 16.4

11.0 4.0 7

8.1 4.0 4.1

8.4 0.8 7.6

2.4 - 2.4

8.3 0.2 8.1

56.2 10.6 45.6

E_—F+_RA=+—H'M
HRFBREMEATAE:

Expected timeline

for the application of
the unutilised proceeds
B )
FERECERBARER

By 31 December 2024
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By 31 December 2024

R-E-ME+=A=1+—BZH
By 31 December 2024

RZZ-WE+=-A=1+—RAZH
By 31 December 2024

R-Z-MFE+-A=+—RZH
By 31 December 2024

R-B-MFE+-A=+—RZH
By 31 December 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, total market value for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group was approximately HK$87.3 million (2020:
approximately HK$61.1 million). The Board considers that
the investments with market value accounting for more
than 5% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2021 as significant investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$16.7 million
(2020: approximately HK$10.6 million). For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised realised
gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$16,000 (2020: approximately
HK$0.4 million).

Detail of the top financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, in terms of market value as at 31 December
2021 are as follows:

BB BT
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B 42T E 4 A87,300,000/8 7T (=
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For the year ended
31 December 2021

As at 31 December 2021 BE-2--%
RZB=Z-%+ZA=+-H TZAZt-BLEE
Proportion
to the total
issued share Proportion Unrealised
capital for to the total fair value
the stocks assets of the gain on the
Number of ERE Market Group investments Dividends
shares held BRARE value BAEE  RENDKRER received
Company name INGER RHER ag mE  BEEZWA DEERE EHRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET
WLS Holdings Limited EEZRBERAR 296,590,000 2.06% 15,126 4.60% 6,228 -
("WLS") ([ER))
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W ETH

WLS is a company listed in Hong Kong in which it and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
scaffolding and fitting out services, and other services for
construction and buildings work, money lending business,
securities brokerage and margin financing and securities
investment business and assets management business.

Looking forward, the Board believes that the future
performance of the listed investments held by the
Group will be volatile and substantially affected
by overall environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and
development of the investee companies.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive directors and employees as
an incentive to their contribution to the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).
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Corporate Information
NEEH
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Zhu Yuqi, aged 30, is currently assistant to general
manager of a company located in Shenzhen, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Chow Hei Yin Terry, aged 44, executive director of the
Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration from Central Queensland University.
Mr. Chow has more than twenty years of experience
in relation to business development and sales and
marketing. He also has extensive experience in business
administration and entrepreneurial management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chow is a director of a local
company engaging in the trading of Chinese medicine
and Mr. Chow is mainly responsible for the sales and
marketing of the company. Mr. Chow is currently the
vice-president of The Hong Kong Medicine Dealers’ Guild.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ma Kin Ling, aged 39, independent non-executive
director of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy
and Law from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ma is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Hong Kong Finance Investment
Holding Group Limited (HK Stock Code: 007) and a Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of Xinyang
Maojian Group Limited (HK Stock Code: 362).

Man Yuan, aged 34, independent non-executive director
of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.

Huang Zhi, aged 34, independent non-executive director
of the Company. She graduated from Changsha University
majoring in communication engineering. She has over
10 years of management and business development
experience in communication and electronics industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Huang had held senior
management position in sizable company in the People’s
Republic of China and she was mainly responsible for
strategic planning, business development and operational
management.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
transparency, independence and accountability to all
shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2021, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
Ms. Huang Zhi

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 15 of this Annual Report. Under the Listing Rules,
every listed issuer is required to have at least three INEDs,
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of INEDs has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules and represented one-
third of the total Board members.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES
(continued)

Continuous Professional Development
(continued)

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates if there is such a need. In accordance
with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), every newly appointed Director shall hold office
till the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, in view of the current nature of the Company,
the Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
chairman or chief executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.

In this circumstances, the Board considers that the

present practice has already addressed the concerns of
the CG Code in this respect.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term subject to re-election. None of the existing INEDs
are engaged on specific term, and it constituted a
deviation of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.
However all Directors, including INEDs are subject to
retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
at least once every three years under the Bye-laws. In
the circumstances, the Board considers that the present
practice has already addressed the concerns of the CG
Code in this respect.

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

During the financial year of 2021 under review, 4 board
meetings were held and the attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings was as follows:

Name of Directors: EEME:
Mr. ZHU Yugi KRFEHLEE
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry AEE L E
Mr. MAN Yuan m B J
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRELE

Ms. HUANG Zhi (Note 1)

Notes:

1. Ms. Huang Zhi appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 31 March 2021.
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TERERRE

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when necessary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through ill-
health or disability.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to Executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
for overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established
with clearly defined written terms of reference which
set out the scope and authorities of the respective
committee. The terms of reference are available to
shareholders for inspection on the Company’s website.
Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision
and recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
Ms. HUANG Zhi

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
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TERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of three
members, of whom all are independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)").

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a
review of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring
the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
meeting with the auditors to discuss issues arising from
the final audit and any matters the auditors suggest to
discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management and the internal controls; engaging a
professional consultant as the Group's Internal Auditor
to discharge the duties of the Group’s internal control
and risk management, reviewing the annual and interim
report in accordance with the accounting policies and
practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; serving as a focal
point for communication between other Directors and
the auditors in respect of the duties relating to financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.
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TERERRE
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEZET (H)
Audit Committee (continued) EREEE (&)
During the financial year of 2021 under review, two RZE-_-—FOREVRFEN &
committee meetings were held and the attendance of BERTTMRER SZEEX
each committee member at the committee meeting was BZHEBERAT:

as follows:

Attendance/
Number of
Committee

meetings
attended

HER Z£8
BERXY

2/2
2/2
1/2

Name of Committee members ZEERENR

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman) Sz LE (EE)

Mr. MAN Yuan Bl 5 &

Ms. HUANG Zhi m=R/ME

Note: Brat -
1. Ms. Huang Zhi appointed as an independent non-executive 1.

director with effect from 31 March 2021.

During the committee meetings held in the financial
year of 2021, the Audit Committee performed the work

summarized below:
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— Reviewing the financial reports and results —
announcement for the following financial period
before submission to the Board for approval:

— for the year ended 31 December 2020 —

—  for six months ended 30 June 2021

— Reviewing the auditors’

independence and report —

recommending to the Board for the re-appointment
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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TERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been
made.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of ensuring there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration for
the Directors. No Directors and executives can determine
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are INEDs, namely Man Yuan (Chairman) and
Ma Kin Ling.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.

One resolution has been passed by the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2021.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in
1 April 2012 with the written terms in compliance
with Code A.5.2. There are two members in the
Nomination Committee comprising two INEDs, namely
Ma Kin Ling (Chairman) and Man Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Two resolutions have been passed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2021.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable
and balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointment will be
considered against object criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
five Directors. Three of the Directors are INEDs and
independent of management, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterized by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional background,
gender and skills.
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TERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy. The
nomination policy sets out the selection criteria in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate as
Director. Such criteria include but not limited to academic
background, qualifications, relevant experiences in
the industry, character and integrity of the proposed
candidate. Suitable candidate can be nominated by any
Director for the Nomination Committee’s consideration.
Nomination Committee should evaluate the personal
profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as
set out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of each proposed candidate.
After comprehensive assessment, the Nomination
Committee will then make appropriate recommendations
to the Board for approval. All appointments of Directors
will ultimately be based on merit while taking into
account the measurable objectives with regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination
policy and the Board diversity policy on a regular basis
and discuss any revision that may be required, and
recommends any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and competition of the Board, as well
as the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee considers that an
appropriate balance of diversity is maintained on the
current Board, which comprises members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. The
Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant
issues.
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Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 66
to 74.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business. The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) -
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving

the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple
corporate and operation structure, as opposed to
diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, for internal
control and risk management to conduct review on
the internal control system and risk management of
the Group during the year. The review covers certain
procedures on the sales of telephone and related
products, and make recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control system. No significant
area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance, control and risk management of the Group
has been identified.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.

&R B RRE

BERZE (8
B B TR e AR B4R U (M

)ﬂﬂﬂ

Rl E AT R B AR IEF] - R
[l %5 8B P R0 LB & F 7 5k B Y

XN REABMEE-

REEWEANFBERTILT A A
SEERERFTERLABEH
FIETFESER- i%ﬁﬁ/\$’$lﬁ']’“
7&%4& SEAEME X E
DEE RN — flﬁiﬂ']lﬁuﬁ%ﬁf
Hf ZEE20EZZESNHY
TEZBEASENRRERERA
HEZERATENHEAR -

FR-AEERAFEERERE
ZEIINEERSNEE R A
EEEHIE R AR E R S BR
EEFRMEBERBEENETIEF
I B 5t Bk Ko hnom ;A &R BS 12 il 12
HER - BEERNETEARAEE
M FHEE AR EH kAR
EENEAMIEE

AEENRBRERERABEESE
REBEMIFBERAREEXNEHRF
B L 2 1 AR - jﬂ%—ﬁdﬁiﬁfﬁéﬂﬁ
A BREHEAIEE 3!5%@3%”]1%.:

EECREABERNTRNE
Iﬁ’(ﬂ&%%i JllquilJB‘JZ—EELA&

SR BEELMEHERE RES
A*HF AEBECREILYANEM
Jea\ B TR K 1 B BE A I

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 47

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy on
disclosure of insider information with the aim to ensure
the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2021, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors,
McMillian Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were set out
belows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong") was the
company secretary of the Company. She is responsible to
the Board for ensuring the board procedures are followed
and that the Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year
of 2021.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (20) clear business days’ notice for annual
general meeting and at least ten (10) clear business
days’ notice for all other general meetings are given to
shareholders of the Company before the meeting.
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TERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of
dividends in January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating
the members and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company.

Pursuant to the dividend policy, the Board may take into
account of, among other matters, the following factors
when considering the declaration of interim dividend and
proposing the payment of final dividend for the approval
of the Company’s shareholders:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial
performance;

(ii) the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and futures

expansion plans;

(iii) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

BRRRZBE (%)
BERABRERETNETRRNE
FeERAeZERFRAFARA
BRREBABRBRETNETRR
MEHEEEE - URHERESTA
EITRRNERBNBERKRNEBHE
REAEBEBARIMBRAA
AL T E o

AR ER AR FRE & www.
suncorptech.com.hk ' & / FI|3 &
RAAREBERREENTZEHEHR
REFHEE MBERREMER -

RS BER

ARAIR_F-—NAF-ARHK—]R
BRERNBE - BRERREERSD
RAERE YREBRRREKREE
i EARR R B B2 FIBRERTE

REBRERKR BEFEEREEIRT
HIRL B R 2 i R 1N R H3 B B BA K
NARRIER TREERE (AP E
BIATREZE:

(i) XEBEZERNEMMBEES:

(i) AEBzEREEERT R &
AR FRKEARKERTE

(i) XEBZRE RN KA DK
f



Corporate Governance Report

DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no
significant change in the Company’'s memorandum of
association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company'’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

30 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) covers the Group’s overall performance
in the environmental and social aspects of our business
operations in Hong Kong and the PRC office from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “year” or
“2021"), unless otherwise stated.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) which is set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "HKEX") serves as the reporting guidelines of
this ESG Report. The ESG Report has been prepared
based on four reporting principles, including materiality,
guantitativeness, balance and consistency.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE STRATEGIES

Sustainability is an essential part of the Group’s
values. We are committed to promoting sustainable
development by incorporating the environmental, social
and governance (ESG) concept into our business decision-
making. In order to preserve the quality of life for both
present and future generations, the Group strives to
reduce its impacts on the environment and contribute to
society through engaging in various charity activities.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) assumes overall
responsibility for ESG strategy, management, performance
and reporting. The Board and the senior management
will review issues and policies related to the Group's
sustainable development annually and make amendments
to the policies in a timely manner.
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B BFERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE STRATEGIES (continued)

A materiality assessment was performed in order to
identify sustainability topics that are material and relevant
to the Group. To identify potential material topics for
disclosure in the Report, the Group took reference to
the ESG Reporting Guide and set possible topics for
assessment. The table below depicted the Group's
material topics. The Group has identified the key ESG
topics which are “relevant” and “important” to our
business. In particular, the employee welfare, inclusion
and equal opportunities, occupational health and safety,
training and development and corporate governance are
the issues of the highest priority.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Emissions

Since the Group's primary businesses are sale of
consumer goods and provision of financial services, most
of our operations are conducted in offices and thus
emissions generated from us are relatively immaterial. As
part of our efforts to minimize greenhouse gas ("GHG")
emissions, the Group applies energy saving measures in
the workplace, including the installation of an energy-
efficient lighting system, setting an optimal temperature
for air-conditioning and switching off electrical appliances
after office hours.

During the year, there were no cases in relation to non-
compliance with environmental protection laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Emissions (continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

In 2021, the Group's total greenhouse gas emissions
were 8.5 tonnes of CO,-equivalent (2020: 25 tonnes
of CO,-e). The primary source of greenhouse gas
emissions is “energy indirect” emissions resulting from
the generation of purchased electricity consumed within
the workplace; and indirect emissions due to electricity
used for processing fresh water and sewage made up the
remaining portion. The increase in emissions was largely
because all staff members kept working in office during
2020.

Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREER —E-—F

Scope 1 emissions

& E 15
Scope 2 emissions 8.0
& E25F
Scope 3 emissions 0.5
& E 35
Total greenhouse gas emissions 8.5
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Intensity (by floor area)
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Waste Generation

The Group does not generate any hazardous waste in
its operations. Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s
operations was mainly office paper but the management
of the Group believes that this portion of waste is
insignificant.
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B BFERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources

The Group's core businesses are sales and marketing of
residential telephone and related products, the processing
and trading of used computer-related components,
securities brokerage, placing and underwriting, money
lending and B2B cross-border e-commerce. Due to the
nature of our business activities, we do not consume a
large amount of resources.

Nonetheless, the Group has formulated a set of policies
and measures to enhance the efficiency of our resources
usage such as energy, water and other materials. For
instance, we encourage our employees to reduce the
usage of papers by adopting internet communication,
assessing the need of printing, applying duplex printing
and reusing single-sided printed papers if possible.

Apart from that, for office stationery procurement, we
give preference to environmental-friendly suppliers who
provide the brand of paper approved by the Programme
for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (“PEFC").

Energy Use and Efficiency

The Group does not have any business activities that
involve the use of direct energy. Electricity consumption
is the sole contributor to the energy use in our offices. In
2021, the total amount of electricity consumed was 21.5
MWh (2020: 38.4 MWh); and the energy consumption
intensity was 0.007 MWh per square feet (2020: 0.008
MWh per sq. ft).
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Use and Efficiency (continued)

To improve the energy efficiency of the Group, we
implemented a series of energy-saving measures including
encouraging the use of electric fans and switching the
lighting of the office to more energy-efficient fluorescent
lamps.

Direct and indirect energy

consumption by type 2021
REHEINEERBEEREFERE —EC-—-F
Direct energy consumption -
BEIRAER

Indirect energy consumption 21.5
EEE L IR B

Total energy consumption 21.5
RERBERAE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.007
TE (REEEBENE) 0.007
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B BFERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Water Use and Efficiency

The Group’s business operations do not involve any
water-intensive activities and our offices only consume an
insignificant amount of water. In 2021, the total amount
of water use was 12 cubic meters (2020: 17.4 m?); and
the water consumption intensity was 0.004 cubic meter
per square foot of floor area (2020: 0.003 m?3 per sq.
ft). The daily water consumption is mainly supplied from
the municipal water network and the Group did not
encounter any issues in sourcing water during the year.
We will continue to monitor our water consumption and
search for areas of improvement in water efficiency in the
future.

Water consumption in total and

intensity 2021
RAKBEREE —B-—F
Total water consumption 12.0
RKiEE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.004

EE (RREEENE)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Packaging Materials

The Group only uses a small amount of packaging
materials, i.e. cartons, in its primary businesses. In 2021,
the total amount of packaging materials used for finished
products was 0.67 tonnes (2020: 0.3 tonnes).

Packaging material used

for finished products 2021
K ANEEME —B—-F
Total packaging material used 0.67

FTRHBEEMEEE

Intensity (by floor area) 0.21
7E (HEEEEFHE)

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our businesses, the Group's activities
do not have significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources. However, to minimize possible
environmental impacts related to our activities, products
and services, the Group shall:

e identify significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources from our operations and set targets
to reduce associated stress;

e prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimize
resource consumption for all daily operations;

e comply with relevant laws and requirements
which relate to the Company and its subsidiaries’
environmental aspects; and

e educate, train and motivate our employees to
develop a sustainable mentality that enables them to
conduct business activities in a responsible manner.

RIE-HEMERKRSE

W5 H ()
SRR ()
BRH

AEETEFEXEBHEERAIER

ww BlangsEg - N - T~ —4F
REK MmO BEMEEER0.67

ﬂ@ﬁ(quyi 0.3MF) o

Unit
B

tonnes

7

kg/sq. ft
R/ ERER

REHEBRER

ERBMOEBLEE AEBRHK
QEE@T\A%’T%%&E%Q%*EE
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RIE-HEMERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued) RIBLE ()
Climate Change RIRE1t
Climate change is one of the major environmental RIESBCROIETFRNEZIRER

challenges in the recent decades. Although climate ez —-HAREKELETIEE
change will not affect our business operation directly, the = EHRPNERKESE BEXE
Group still committed to reducing the greenhouse gas MERARBLBRERBHER WM
emissions and transiting to a greener office. The table FHRENPLRERE - TRETR
below demonstrated the possible risks of climate change. < b 7] ge A5 2R A R Bg o

Employee

BE

Business Operation

EREE

Mitigation Measures

R

Acute Risks — Intense Extreme Weathers

SRR -ZRENRK XA

The personal safety of the employees may be affected by the extreme
weather during commuting. The collapse of trees or landslide may
cause personal injuries.

ERAET BEENAFLZEAREXINHEBRARNZE B AR E
R ILEEE KA ENA TGS -

The adverse weather may reduce productivity or suspend operation
of the offices. The transportation difficulties and potential disruption
to the supply chain may lower the service quality and customer
satisfaction level.
BHNRRAIGEEREEAENXNEERLAENEE- ERENENHE
HOBEPEH SR ERERERTPREE -

The Group would follow the guideline on the working arrangements
set by local governments on adverse weather conditions and implement
emergency actions according to the actual situation.

REBRKERD ST BAHENTLRRGH T TIELHESI LRE
ERBRAEMESITE -
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SOCIAL ASPECT

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group advocates for a communal spirit that thrives
on mutual respect and equal opportunities. The Group
strictly complies to laws and regulations related to
equal opportunities, including but not limited to the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. To ensure diversity and equality, our selection
process is non-discriminatory and solely based on the
employees’ performance, experience and skills. Our
employees are also encouraged to discuss their targets in
job advancement and career development with the senior
management.

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the
Group is committed to offering professional development
opportunities and a healthy working environment for all
employees. Salaries and wage rates are usually subjected
to an annual review that is based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group
provides equal opportunities for all employees along
with competitive remuneration and strongly encourages
internal promotion.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of employees with reference to the
market condition. For the purpose of ensuring there are
formal and transparent procedures for setting policies
on the remuneration for the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee was established.

RIE-HEMERKRSE
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B BFERRE

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

The Group also reviews the compensation and benefits
programmes regularly to ensure its compensation and
benefits packages remain competitive. Over the years, the
Group has introduced a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) by which the Board may exercise
its discretion to grant share options to Directors and
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
employment and labour standards laws and regulations
for the year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of
30 employees (2020: 11), including operational office,
sales and marketing, finance, company secretarial and
securities brokerage divisions.

Number of Employee By Gender
RERNEDETAH

® Male

B Female

pegis Bl

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and
caring environment for employees to enhance their sense
of belonging as well as work effectiveness.

Health and Safety

The Group recognizes the importance of maintaining a
safe, effective and congenial work environment for our
staff. Hence, the Group has put various occupational
health and safety measures in place and regularly
performs checks on the work environment and staff
facilities. For example, we have taken ergonomic
principles into consideration when designing the
workstation to accommodate the body features and
limitations of users.

The outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19)
in Wuhan was the largest challenge for the health
authorities in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group
has a set of policies to protect our staff:

e Regular disinfection of all public area would be
performed,;

e Medical masks and disinfection supplies are provided
to all staff;

e Each staff are required to report their health status
every day; and

e The Department Heads are requested to monitor the
health status of its staff and report if there are any
health issues on timely basis.

RIE-HEMERKRSE
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B BFERRE

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year.
The numbers of work-related fatalities in both 2019,
2020 and 2021 were O.

A TERERILT AR
AT ERERIL TG
RAIEMBERNTERR

Number of work-related fatalities
Rate of work-related fatalities
Lost days due to work injury

Development and Training

The Group understands that human capital plays a
substantial part of the business. As a listed corporation,
the Group is mindful of the continuous development
of the regulatory environment and has established a
practice in gathering the changes of regulations and
ensuring its Directors, responsible officers, licensed
representatives and other employees attend necessary
training programmes. Pursuant to the requirement of
Listing Rules, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses
or reading relevant materials relating to corporate
governance and regulations to consolidate their
knowledge and skills.

Number of trained employees

ZINEEAR

Total number of trained employees
ZHEERAH

Percentage of total employees trained
ZIMEBRAZBB DL

By gender Female
gkl pegcd

Male

B
Management
BB
Middle

|

Junior

xE

By level
g S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

Average training hours completed

5T B B9 S 39 3% 31 B B

Average training hours per employee
B 8 &) F 19315 5|6

By gender Female
gkl pegid

Male

S
Management
EIRE
Middle

ae

Junior

EE

By level
g S

Labour Standards

The Employment of Children Regulations and Employment
Ordinance prohibit all employers from engaging child and
forced labour in the workforce, and regulates the hours
of work and general conditions of employment of young
persons in industrial undertakings. With compliance
to relevant laws and regulations, the Group does not
engage in any forced or child labour. The Staff Code of
Conduct is enclosed in the Compliance Manual, which is
readily accessible to all employees.

In compliance with the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, no child or forced labour
was employed in the Group's operations during the year.

RIE-HEMERKRSE
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2021
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RIE-HEMERRS

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT

Supply Chain Management

To comply with the laws and regulations, the Group has
established stringent internal controls to procuring goods
and materials through a fair and unbiased tender process.
The selection of subcontractors and suppliers is based on
their fulfilment of specifications, standards, product and
service quality as well as associated support services.

The Group carefully selects qualified suppliers to
ensure that the entire production process is in line
with corresponding standards and rules. The Group
not only requests its new suppliers to submit a review
of all relevant documents, but also conducts rigorous
checks to assess their reliability. The Group also carries
out inspections and assessments regularly to review our
suppliers’ standards, and terminates collaboration with
unqualified suppliers.

CEBIRHERE

HEEERE

REEERIER AEEERY
BRIRHAMEZEABBARTFRAR
MREREFREE @ R # e 3
AR IR T & B8 AR E o MR
BEENHBERBEXHEESED
KPR o

AEBBEREZSERMER AR
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AEBTNMEERFHERERRE
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HETHERFE AR LERATE
REEEA A ERE -

Supplier Distribution by Geographical Region
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that good customer and after-sales
services are the keys to the success of our business. In
order to respond promptly to the needs of our customers,
the Group set up a series of communication channels
among different business units to handle customers’
queries.

The Group also emphasises the importance of protecting
and safe-guarding customers’ privacy, especially for
money lenders’ information. In compliance with
provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, we
are cautious with the collection, handling and usage of
customers’ personal data.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
data privacy-related laws and regulations during the year.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds high standards of integrity and does
not condone any unethical behaviour in our business.
Employees are prohibited to request, receive or accept
any forms of benefit from any persons, company or
organization which have business transactions with the
Group. All staff members are reminded to avoid situations
that may lead to or involve any conflict of interest.

To effectively monitor market misconduct such as staff
dealing, money laundering and insider trading, the Group
has set up a series of policies detailed in the Compliance
Manual which is readily accessible to all employees.
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B BFERRE

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Anti-corruption (continued)

In particular, the Group has established a Code of
Conduct and stipulated in the Compliance Manual.
The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") has
published the Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Financing of Terrorism which summarise what
money laundering and terrorist financing are and what
the legislation requires. The Guideline also explains the
procedures of internal control which the SFC expects to
be followed by registered person in a range of areas.
The management does not tolerate corruption, bribery,
extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of the business
operations.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, fraud
and corruption.

The Group established the internal Whistleblowing Policy
to encourage all our employees who have concerns about
any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the
Group to raise up those concerns with the management.
The Audit Committee of the Group has the overall
responsibility for the Whistleblowing Policy but has
delegated day-today responsibility for overseeing and
implementing it to a designated officer.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES AND SOCIAL
INVESTMENT (continued)

Anti-corruption (continued)

The Group respects confidentiality and takes the
reporting cases seriously and will make every effort to
keep the identity confidential, it is preferred that these
reports not be made anonymously. The designated officer
shall monitor and report the status, findings, results of
the investigation and corrective actions taken to resolve
the misconduct or malpractice to the Management and
the Audit Committee confidentially. The Audit Committee
will report misconduct or malpractice to the Board at
least annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not organize
anti-corruption training due to COVID-19 and will
arrange the training sessions for both directors and
employees if needed. There was no incident of corruption
or non-compliance in relation to corruption or money
laundering-related laws and regulations during the year.

Community Investment

In order to become a more responsible business
and create a better living environment for the local
community, the Group is committed to continuously
providing sponsorships and donations to various
charitable organisations in the coming years.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B BFERRE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Key Environmental Performance Indicators
BREREARER
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: HHM
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
A12 RERBAHREREE
Scope 1 emissions
0 BB
Scope 2 emissions
E2H MY
Scope 3 emissions
& E 3B
Total greenhouse gas emissions
RERBEHNE
Intensity (by floor area)
BE (RELEEAE)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREA

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

REDESNERER R EERER
Direct energy consumption
HERRER

Indirect energy consumption

Al B JRH #8

Total energy consumption
RERAEERE

Intensity (by floor area)

BE (RELEEEAE)

Water consumption in total and intensity
RAXKBERBE

Total water consumption

RKEE

Intensity (by floor area)

BE (RELEEAE)

Packaging material used for finished products
B i P P B 5 4 )

Total packaging material used
FIREBEMEEE

Intensity (by floor area)

BE (RELEEEAE)

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2

A2.5
A2.5
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE B8
INDICATORS (Continued)

Social Aspects

tEEE
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : {EfE
B1.1 Total workforce
B1.1 ETAH
Total number of employees
BTHE
By gender Female
gkl F o) Leglid
Male
S
By employment type Full-time
RERBEE D X
Part-time
B
By age group 30 years old or below
RFh BRI &S 30BREIA T
31-45 years old
31-455%
46-60 years old
46-607%
Over 60 years old
607% LA &
By level Management
RE R E D EIRE
Middle
g
Junior
IE
By geographical region Hong Kong
1732 [ 19 8 0
China
a3

RIE-HEMERKRSE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE HRENEERE (#)
INDICATORS (Continued)

Social Aspects 2021
HEEER —E-—F

B1.2 Employee turnover rate

B1.2 EER% =R

Total employee turnover rate 3%
BEHERAR
By gender Female 0%
R R &l 7t
Male 5%
Bt
By employment type Full-time 3%
RERBEAIE D g
Part-time -
e Bk
By age group 30 years old or below 0%
RFERABRE D 30BR AT
31-45 years old 0%
31-455%
46-60 years old 25%
46-605%
Over 60 years old -
605% A £
By level Management 0%
BB E D EEE
Middle 5%
B
Junior 0%
2B
By geographical region Hong Kong 20%
g e o) N
China 0%
B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 REREZ2

B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities 0
B2.1 EIFRERERET AH
Rate of work-related fatalities 0%
EITEBEETIEL
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 0

B2.2 RIEMBANIHFHR
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (Continued)

Social Aspects
HEEE
Aspect B3: Development and Training
EmEB3 : &R &E
B3.1 Number of trained employees
B3.1 ZIMWEEAR
Total number of trained employees
Xl EE AR
Percentage of total employees trained
RINEEBAEES L
By gender Female
gkl o) peglid
Male
S
By level Management
mE R El D EIRE
Middle
T E
Junior
2=E
B3.2 Average training hours completed
B3.2 3T Ak AYF 1935 I B B
Training hours per employee
BUEENZINER
By gender Female
®mHu R85 Eeglicd
Male
B
By level Management
BE B 82 EEE
Middle
g
Junior
2B
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RIE-HEMERRSE

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (Continued)

Social Aspects

tEEE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

fEHEBS : EHEEE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B5.1 ZtEEFHAA S NUEEHE

Total number of suppliers

HEmAH
By geographical region Hong Kong
L IR & 5 8 5 BB
China
a3

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BEB6 : EmERE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
B6.1 AEMERMLEMARHENREENAILL

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received
B6.2 WEIMEERNRBERNRFHE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7: RES

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases

B7.1 EERANERERHEE
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
is also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sales of telephone and
related products, and the processing and trading of
used computer-related components such as integrated
circuit chips, hard-disk and motherboards from developed
countries to developing countries. During the year of
review, the Group also engaged in providing money
lending business; securities brokerage and underwriting
business and the B2B cross-border e-commerce business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 75.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2021, the Group had an increase of
approximately 15.1% of revenue as compared to the
corresponding figure for 2020. Information relating to
the financial performance and fair review of the Group
business is set out in the "“Director’s Statement section”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis section” of
this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group’s prospects is provided in
the Director’s statement on pages 2 to 4 of the annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provide in this corporate
governance report on pages 16 to 34 of the annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report on
pages 35 to 56 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 196.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 74% of the revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 34% of the revenue of the Group while
the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 75% of the purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 54% of
the purchases of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate
of a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's
largest customer or the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$2.3 million
on leasehold improvement, furniture, fixtures and
equipment. Details of movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAN Yuan

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Ms. HUANG Zhi (appointed with effect
from 31 March 2021)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Man Yuan and Mr. Ma Kin Ling
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Byelaws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short
positions of the Directors, chief executive and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long Position

Ordinary shares of HK$0.006 each of the Company

Name of directors

ZHU Yuqi

CHOW Hei Yin Terry
MAN Yuan

MA Kin Ling
HUANG Zhi

Note:

1.
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underlying
shares held
in options Percentage
granted under of the issued
the Share share capital of
Option Scheme the Company
REERETE
No.of RHEZERE BAERTEE
shares held mEEZ BITRAZ
FrisiR 3 8 8 FERGHE BOL
= 7,607,000 0.51
- 6,304,000 0.42
- 7,607,000 0.51
= 7,607,000 0.51
- 6,304,000 0.42
Hiet -

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of
the Company’s issued share capital of 1,492,936,566 as at

31 December 2021.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by shareholders at
the annual general meeting, under which the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant share options to eligible
persons including Directors, employees and consultants
to subscribe share in the Company.

With effect from 23 December 2021, a new share option
scheme (the "New Share Option Scheme”) had been
adopted by shareholders at the special general meeting
following the existing share option scheme was adopted
on 4 May 2012 be terminated on the same day.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share
options to subscribe for 131,503,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.006 each under the Share Option Scheme had
been granted to eligible grantees. During the year ended
31 December 2021, 76,075,000 share options granted to
consultants had been expired.

At 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect
of which outstanding share options could be exercisable
under the terms of the Share Option Scheme was
131,503,000 shares, representing approximately 8.81%
the shares of the Company in issue at that date. All
outstanding share options are currently held by directors
and employees of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of
securities available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme was 149,293,656, representing approximately
10.0% the total number of issued shares of the
Company.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Worldwide Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, provided the cash advance
to its director for facilitating the purchase of goods from
suppliers. The director was regarded as a connected
person of the Company. As at 31 December 2021,
Worldwide Technology Limited had an amount due from
its director up to approximately HK$4,717,000.

Details of the connected transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 November 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2021. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a New Share Option Scheme
as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details
of which are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has resigned as the
auditors of the Company with effect from 8 January
2020 and confirmed in its letter of resignation that
there are no matters or circumstances connected with its
resignation that need to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited was appointed
on 8 January 2020 as the new auditors to fill the cause
vacancy. The financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 was audited by McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office will be
expired upon the forth coming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the re-appointment of McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the auditors of the Company
for the ensuing year will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Suncorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
75 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditqr’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETTEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our BREFEFEABRERMOEEH
professional judgement, were of most significance in W BRMRBEAHEETBRE
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of WENRAEENEH - ELEFH
the current period. These matters were addressed in EEBRMEBABERBEEMBTRER

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial TEERNETEEN -BMTE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion HettEzBHREHEERAER -EF5H

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on AR BB EFEA:
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade 1. BUESEFEREEEER(IA

receivables. HEEEE| ) BiE-
2. Allowance for ECL of loan receivables. 2. BWERZEREEBERE-
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEETEE RPN ESNNEEBEEETEE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables

BWE G RAER B RERE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 R MK FE6(c) F21 -

The Group had trade receivables of approximately Our procedures in relation to management’s
HK$38,998,000 (2020: approximately allowance for ECL assessment of the trade
HK$28,189,000), net of allowance for ECL receivables as at 31 December 2021 included:

of approximately HK$1,792,000 (2020: HZMEBEEREHR _T-_—4F+-_A=+—H
approximately HK$1,452,000). ZEKESEFEREEEERETLZEFE
EEBEEAEWE 5R%38,998,00087L (= #&:

T T F:4928,189,000/8 T) - MBRTEHA(E . ,

BB IRE#1,792,0008 7% (Z 2 =24 * Obtaining an understanding of and
1,452 0005 7T) © evaluating the Group's credit policies;

o THMERE EEENEFEREERE:

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

s MWMEBREN_T-_—F+-_A=+—HE#
PGB A ) EIE J BRI BRI 15 R F
R REIRITEERIE
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Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (continued)

BUKEZRAFBREEBRZE (&)

Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forward-looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the
allowance for ECL.
ERERBIRAZFONGEEMRN BRE SR
T ERE  BEAEERS BEEEIRR TEH
FRAIAERERERCBREBBE SO
BRHMWEZFENERWE SRR AT E M
MEtiRTEHIEEBREEEN T B L ETTE ST
H-BERENERBARTERFERERERS
EREENHATRE M B R A TEHREE BB &
e

We focus on this area due to the allowance for
ECL of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.
BMAILSERDAENEREEEREXTH
BRESEREHEEEEREIRFERAEX
BT E A R Ah AT e
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Inquiring of management for the status
of each of the material trade receivables
past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding
on-going business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records
of and other correspondence with the
customers;
REEBARFEBAEBHRKE S RFAMRN
MRAEHZFEREEETERENBERE (F)
WRIEE Stk TRERPNSERKEE
REZPHNBAEREEERIEARERTP
B E AL RAE ) A B IR

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL; and

AETEREEEEEEEARTAE MM
SRR BIR ) A AR ERE I e B
TEAETRRAGEERMAZRR B
BERAEMEER: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EEMAER EEBEERRNEGS MR
KA PTVEIRER -



Key audit matter

BARETER

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables

BUREF R EEERER

Independent Auditqr’s Report
8 3L 1% S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SRR B MWK M E6(c) K22 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's loan
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$119,013,000 (2020: approximately
HK$168,595,000), net of allowance for ECL
of approximately HK$169,012,000 (2020:
approximately HK$100,934,000).
RZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—H' EBf£EH
FEUWE K% AH119,013,0008 L (=T =%
F:#9168,595,0008 T) " HKRBEHEEES
BEBE#L169,012,000B T (ZTE_FF: 4
100,934,000/ 7T ) °

The allowance for ECL of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at
the end of the reporting period of ECL under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments ECL models.
FARERERERGEEBEREREEERE
TRV HREENFFR - eMIAEHREES
BFEEN RNBRERREBHREEERz&E
&t e

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on provision for allowance for ECL
of loan receivables as at 31 December 2021
included:

R-E_—F+A=+—B BZMEHEEE
R RERERNTERAEEFERBEHEETIHD
BFEE:

e Obtaining an understanding of and
evaluating the Group’s credit policies;

o THMERE EEENEEEX:

e Assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models by examining the
model input used by management to form
such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking
information including the economic variables
and assumptions used in each of the
economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances;

o it EEEEHGEEEFAEASEUNT
ARBREEBER/EBURBAEMEAZE
N AR (BRAGBEEENBURERE
m) FAEELEEXEERA AR ENRR
LRAREEER (BRBEKBEBESRTHER
MEBEZEENBRANERERER)REE
AEBEEEEEEX UARFEERENERE
BREERELFERS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBFTNNEERARESSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables (continued)

BUREHZEBREEERZE (&)

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions
used in the ECL models (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.
BHEEBENTEARAERABRESH
BN EBREENGEEERRERLHRAR
AREBREEERER T EANRR (RES
S HAFEORRTS)  PINBEERKR SR
ENARERBLERRE-

We focus on this area due to the significant
amount of the loan receivables and the
significant estimates and judgement involved
in determining the ECL assessment on the loan
receivables.

BRI T EDERERERNERESRE
REFTERRERNEHEEBETEIREXR
ERPE -

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

Reviewed settlements after the financial year
end relating to the loan receivables as at
31 December 2021; and
RYBFEFRERERENRN_ZTE-_—F+-A
=+t—HERKRERBBZEERBL: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.

EENAER EXEFEERRBRRESMB

WRPATIERE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

BB

Hif5 8

EFAHHEMESATE -HMER
BRFHRANFABEEN BETERE
RAEPBHRERREMANZEE RS
(TEMfER]) -

B EEVHRROBRLLTE
EEMES BFAXTHZEFEA
ERBEREMEANERLER-

BeaRMERA B RERMNE
RPN ETRMEELMER Z&
HttE R 2R EBGEAEPBRRAR
MEETBETATENBERAFE
EABEBREUTFFEERERR
A B B0 o AR IR T PI AR A T 4F - 40
REMRBRA/ZEMERFEERE
MRt AR PIZAREZFEE - H M
N AN IRI R

EEHGRSHMBRRNEL

EZRERBE LGOS HEM
HE B W B REEDREFL QA K
PIMBBERERBEEMT S Z2&
EUBBRR UHERRRERSE
MBEBRROBETFEARRFX
$H R 8 B A B A 88 AR BRI P R Y
ABIEFIB S -

ERBREAMEHRRE EFAE
At BEREREKLENEN AHE
ERBATRERSERLLEABN
FRENMEAFEREEHERAH
MEBALREAKELLERGHE
B-BRIEZEES EXEBRK
RIERT SR BEEMERNER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

BB

BB ERRES M BRRA

B EE ()
o« TREBIHAMG DR
REHEY OBIHEF B A ML

Y EEEAMEHOHER
HHKRER-

AHEEEMRAEBERNN
2 M N AF g s h ET AN AR R
BREmEMTe

HEFRAFSELLEGHER
Y15 & 11 A o AR IR PRI ER
METRE BESOFHEES
HABRABBNEANTEE M
femAEERE EXENE
BREENELBERRE R
RREFEERTEEMN AELH
BEZHBMREPIRGERE
TEREAMEHMR ZAEAKE-
REEHEORETE  RIRME
ERRFERBER -RMNE
wEERBEERBA RS B L
ARG E&HERE - A KK
FEFBFRAAELEH EEH
TNEEFFERLE

AERAMBRENERT R

AR EBNAT BREKESR
B ARGEMBREREETA
RIRZX 5 N BT

O EEBERNERAERED
MPHESEDRTEE BENE
AR WEHRAMBRRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07606

24/F., Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEEHERHEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
H it FTET FAET
Revenue W &= 8 199,967 173,692
Costs of sales 35 5 B AR (174,624) (148,104)
Gross profit £ A 25,343 25,588
Other income H g = 9 211 856
Distribution and selling expenses %3 §§ & $§ & i % (6,091) (443)
Operating expenses KERAX (25,152) (18,275)
Provision for expected credit FEWE 5 AR - Efth fE U
losses (“ECL") on trade, HIEREWER 2B
other and loan receivables, net {EEEE ([BHEE
BRI EEFR (68,286) (88,031)
Unrealised gain on financial ERATFER AR
assets at fair value through ([RAFETA
profit or loss (“FVTPL") BRI 2emEEZ
NI WG 25 16,743 10,574
Realised gain/(loss) on financial #E QA EF AEz=
assets at FVTPL i mﬁﬁFZEm
Was/ (EB#E) 16 (431)
Loss from operation KEEB (57,216) (70,162)
Finance costs B IS R 11 (470) (188)
Loss before tax BRBL AT S 18 (57,686) (70,350)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fe® (AX) /& 12 (1,154) 243
Loss for the year AKEEEE 13 (58,840) (70,107)
Other comprehensive income Eﬂ’séﬁl&é
Item that may be reclassified BERAEEF DR
subsequently to profit or loss: fﬁ m ZH A
Exchange differences on MEBINEG 2
translating foreign operations M X =5 - 2
Loss and total comprehensive XEEFHER ZHEKE
income for the year LG (58,840) (70,105)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
H it TER FHET
Loss for the year TH AL
attributable to: rXEEFE:
Owner of the Company RARHEEB A (58,753) (70,107)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 (87) -
(58,840) (70,107)
Loss and total comprehensive T35 A LtEEXREE
income for the year BERE2EWEERE:
attributable to:
Owner of the Company RARHEE A (58,753) (70,105)
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR M 2 (87) -
(58,840) (70,105)
Loss per share attributable to A2 T A AFEAS
owners of the Company BREE (B)
(HK cents) 17
— Basic —EK (5.09) (8.52)
- Diluted —#E N/A RERA  NA TER

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EeaMBRAR

At 31 December 2021 R=—Z=—%+=-A=+—A

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FEx FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment S ER N 18 - 5
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 395 =
Deposits ®e 20 205 205
Deferred tax assets EIETL IR B E 28 23 979
623 1,189
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables EUWE 5 BRI
H b e W K18 21 61,841 40,919
Loan receivables FEWE 7K 22 119,013 168,595
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTAEBERZ
TEEE 23 87,284 61,050
Tax recoverable AT Y [ £ 18 123 165
Cash and bank balances He MIRITE R
— Segregated accounts —BIERP 24 7,223 5,620
— House accounts —B88KRF 24 52,875 21,615
328,359 297,964
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ERNEZERR
H h & T 30IE 25 65,703 39,862
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 1,304 675
Bank loan RITER 27 2,905 3,584
69,912 44 121
Net current assets REBEERE 258,447 253,843
Total assets less current WEERTBERE
liabilities 259,070 255,032
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 2,062 =
Net assets EEFHE 257,008 255,032
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra BRI R

At 31 December 2021 R=Z=——F+=-A=+—8

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i FEx FHET
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable N2 R #E B A AL IR K&
to owners of the Company i
Share capital Ji&% < 29 8,958 5,477
Reserves &k 1 248,138 249,555
257,096 255,032
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR HE 2 (88) -
Total equity MR 257,008 255,032
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 195 FISRI1BHEHREVBHRERERZ

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of T _F-A=THEEEgHE
Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf RERTE WHTHNESREKE

by: 2.
ZHU Yuqi CHOW Hei Yin Terry
KFH ARE

Director Director

EE EE
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At 1 January 2020

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Placing of share (note 29)

Share options lapsed

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments (note 30)

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary 21—

Placing of shares (note 29)
Share options lapsed

RAHEE (Hih29)
BREXN

rEERRR2ERELE

WBRRZB7EE
1i29)

Rk
BlEEM

Recognition of equity-settled share based 2 A B A EER R A

payments (note 30)

At 31 December 2021

2R (HeE0)

RZF--%+-A=+-H

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARE
Other
capital Share
Share Share reserve Contributed Translation options  Accumulated
Capital premium £t surplus reserve reserve losses Subtotal
Rx RHEE oS- EON:L] RERE BRERRE 23t EE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin T TiEn T Fikr Tn TiEn
(note 32)f)) ~ (note 3206)i))  (note 32(b)fi)  (note 32(b)fv)  (note 32(b))
(Fiom)  (FEs2e0)  (Kazabi) (b)) iat3200)
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 (142) 23,895 (233446) 308,925
= S = S 2 5 (70,107 (70,105)
913 12,779 = = = = = 13692
R _ R - - (7.419) 7419 -
- - - - - 2,520 - 2,520
5477 70,635 14,945 441,253 (140) 18,99 (296,134) 255,032
- - - - - - (58,753) (58,753)
- - - - - - 1 1
3481 54,516 - - - - - 57,997
- - - - - (16,737) 16,737 -
- - - - - 2819 - 2819
8958 125,151 14945 441,253 (140) 5078 (338149) 257,09

Non-
controlling
interest
FERER
HK$'000
Tk

HE-F--F+-A=1+-HLHFE

Total
@it
HK$'000
T

308,925

(70,105)
13692

2520

255,032
(58,840)

57,997

2819

257,008
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—=%

Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets
Unrealised gain on financial
assets at FVTPL

Realised (gain)/loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Finance costs
Share-based payment expense

COVID-19 related rent
concessions received

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for ECL on
trade receivables

Provision for ECL on loan
receivables

Reversal of ECL on other
receivables

Operating profit before working
capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade and

other receivables

Increase in loan receivables
(Increase)/decrease in

bank balances

- Segregated accounts
Increase in financial

assets at FVTPL
Increase/(decrease) in trade and

other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax (paid)/refunded
Interest element of lease paid
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating
activities
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2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FER FET
(57,686) (70,350)

429 25

1,142 -
(16,743) (10,574)

(16) 431

470 188

30 2,819 2,520
(29) (67)

1,890 =

2,895 =

- 49

340 409

68,078 87,752
(132) (130)

3,457 10,253

(21,130) 6,464
(18,496) (18,957)

(1,603) 2,912
(9,475) (11,027)
25,641 (13,185)
(21,606) (23,540)

(156) 63
(186) (98)
(284) (90)
(22,232) (23,665)




Investing activity
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Financing activities

Proceeds from placing of new shares

New bank loan raised

Repayment of bank loan

Principal elements of lease
payment paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Effects of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and bank balances
- House accounts

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-%

Note
Wit

REREK
BEVF BELRE

MEEK
FREMmBROAEREA
EEMBIBTER
EBERITER
BENAERZAS IS

34(b)
34(b)
MEEBELIRLFE
BeRBSSEEAEM/
R F 8
IEEE ST HE

R—A—BzBRekRE
FERA

R+=ZR=+t—-HBzHE
rRE%EER

ReERRESEEEDN:

ReRBITES
-BERE 24

S—E+ZRA=t-HALEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
(2,314) -
57,997 13,692
= 3,800
(679) (397)
(1,512) (1,991)
55,806 15,104
31,260 (8,561)
= 2
21,615 30,174
52,875 21,615
52,875 21,615
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

1.

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and Unit 2305, 23/F, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively.
The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in sales of telephones
and related products, processing and trading of used
computer-related components, provision of securities
brokerage, placing and underwriting services, money
lending service and B2B cross-border e-commerce.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS");
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAFIIRKLIETEEBRH
HKFRSs BHEZER

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phrase 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

Except as described below, the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phrase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from
(i) accounting for changes in the basis for
determining contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities
as modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge
accounting when an interest rate benchmark is
replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a
result of the reform of interbank offered rates
(“IBOR reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
have contracts that are indexed to benchmark
interest rates which are subject to the IBOR
reform.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

3. RMFAIREEITERY
| EER (&)
(a) BRI REETER

B H R 2 A (80

BB EREERE9
9 BB DI ERIE39
9 BB EIREERE
795 BB IR EER
FAFER BB IR EE
RIE165% (12574 ) —F
KEENE — ZE2MEE

A ARBBEEATY AE
WEEBERER R () BETE
TREE eRAEREE
BENAYNRERENHE
ENEHIERETENTE
TR R(i)ARBITEE
FEXRE([MITAERE
ME]) ENEREEFER
EEFREUAE AR IEY
TR -

f& 7] 7R I & ¥ 5% 5 B 5 R
RERTE RA/SAEHE
WEBEENRAHHNAR
RITEAEHRBERETER
54



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions

The Group previously applied the practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was
not required to assess whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic were lease modifications,
if the eligibility conditions are met. One of
these conditions requires the reduction in lease
payments affect only payments originally due
on or before a specified time limit. The 2021
amendment extends this time limit from 30 June
2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021
amendment in this financial year. With the
extended time limit, certain rent concessions
that were previously ineligible for the practical
expedient because of the original time limit,
become eligible. Accordingly, these rent
concessions, which were previously accounted
for as lease modifications, are now accounted
for as negative variable lease payments, and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RMFAIREEITERY

HKFRSs (continued) B EER (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) EEMEMKRERZFTRE
yet effective CHESCEE: S ]
Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16, BREEMBGREERE 16
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond BBETAR) RZT=Z—
30 June 2021, the Group has not early applied FRAZTHZEBZHE
any new and revised HKFRSs that have been 7% S &< 7R (COVID-19) 48 78
issued but are not yet effective for the financial HemEe i REBRZ
year beginning on or after 1 January 2021. These TE_—F—-—HA—-RHzgzi’&
new and revised HKFRSs include the following s < B BF B E R AT
which may be relevant to the Group. fE AR 2 MBAE W KA

M HE] MEIERT BB Y
s AR o Al AR E
BRZ&EH REER
BEMBHREERBREIMA
THE:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUAT A
ZERAEMN
ChEEEES:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination 1 January 2022
- Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BERMBRERRNEIN (BITX) RBEH B ERZRM T —R—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment 1 January 2022
— Proceeds before Intended Use
BER G ERE 16 (BAX) DX BELRE —T__%—-H—H
— RVEBE BRI 2 FRS5UR
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling 1 January 2022
a Contract
BERGIHENEIR (AR BRAN-BITAHZHAR “T--f—F—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
R \FE_T_TERPCERNBREREMNFELCE —E--F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current
ER G ERE R (BTN BENRPIFERD IR “T-=%—-HF—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RMFTREIEFTE B
HKFRSs (continued) BHEED (&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) B EME R KREMZH
yet effective (continued) R REETTE BB
HEER (8&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTAHH
PA: 38 Y
B PMEN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies
ER G ERE R (BIIX) M BERROINEREAER B REER —T-=%—-HF—H
ERNER2RAEBEN LB —RESBR
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 1 January 2023
Estimates and Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates
ER G EREST (BaIA) 5 HR StEANEH R —T-=%—-H—H
7 R AR ONGE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to 1 January 2023
Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
BERGERFEI2R (BAIR)ER - RE-XHELANEER —T-=%—-H—H
BEABENELTHE
The Group is in the process of making an AEBEEFHEZEBEE
assessment of what the impact of these AEFTEABHRE R
amendments and new standards is expected ERHENETEZ -HEHR
to be in the period of initial application. So far Bl NEBE RS M I %
it has concluded that the adoption of them Al N KA Nar & B 75
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the WMEREXEAXE-

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management

to

exercise its judgement in the process of applying

the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(a) #EERE (&)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders
and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-ZT=

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

4. FESEBER (8)

(b) SNESIRE

()

(11)

DIER 2| B

AEEETNEEROY
BRI EENIER
HMUZEREENEE
REREONEE ([
RERDIE-REY
BWMERTIAR R B
ELZ27EEET (18
T2

RE&EBERYFFHE A
X5 RAEER

RO EERE IER
ZEYRMR 7 E AWE
RBMERNEEEE
SNEHENEREER
BESREREHAKRD
ERETHRE HARB
B HUR T A A ) W Es e
BERENBSER -

RIFSNEE LN ANGTE
MFEBREENRBER
RXHAMERBE
B HARANGERL
BIEBUHEERERE
ONSRER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-ZT=

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ifi) Translation on consolidation (continued)

On

Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

consolidation, exchange differences

arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment () ME- -BERZRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of

the term of the lease

or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(d) Leases (continued) (d) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if
it were not a lease modification, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(E) Ewu\ n\ JJ:EWL\%F‘J@\I

(e) Recognition and derecognition of

financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group's entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of

(f)

financial instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(f) e MEE (8)

(f) Financial assets (continued)

Debt investments (continued) EERE (&)
fair value through other comprehensive - BERAFEGAHME
income (“FVTOCI") - recycling, if the ik ([#&2A2FES
contractual cash flows of the investment AHEMz2zEWE]) —

comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or fair FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

(0

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Trade and other payables

(N

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(m) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

4. FESEBER (8)

(k) BENEZRAKREALE

(N

7S

FET B 5 B3 e H & A
KBNS AFEER
mHE & AR A BB A XX
BN E - R IR
FEWFEKR BIAKAKT
BE o

BRATHA

PR T B /5] 35 B R A0 Bk
HFfBABRREREE
RERBRECERNGL-
RRRBETHORATART
e B P 1S SR 0 BR
HEERBITRAAR

(m) Wz K E AU A

Yo 2 70 am Bk R 7% 2 12
IR RS BT H A X
ZERHERESE (TEAERK
RE=ZDMB 2R BER
ERFPHEA - WaE T
BEMRIEMHEED WL
R ERE S0 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=%
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this
represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Commission income from securities dealing and
brokerage services is recognised on trade date
basis when the relevant sale or purchase of
securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and underwriting
service is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant act has been completed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(1)

(1)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Government grants (continued)

(r)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(r) Taxation (continued) (r) Fi1E (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit
("CGQU").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates
that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment
is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables
and loan receivables. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(t) TREERE (&)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’'s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TESBER (@)

(continued)

(t) TREERE (&)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has
an internal rating of “performing”. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(t), ECL are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Income tax

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. During
the year, approximately HK$1,154,000 (2020:
approximately HK$243,000) of income tax
was charged (2020: credited) to profit or loss
based on the estimated profit from the Group’s
operations.

5. EEHE R ETE MG (&)

(a) EERBEZEE M

AN B FEAGH) PRS- TRER(E
EEENFIRREERS
RI2EAFEHEEEERN
BiBrt & L F2ME R =K
FIEBREEREHEBIE
EFENBRETE-BER
HEERBRB VT ERER
BEEINEE AR
FEEMBREERFIRL
EAETBXEERBRBZE
BMHRZ - RFEEERN
EERREE BEZIENE -
rAEEgEEAEAANSR
WEERTEEREIEER

HEATHRERRZR 2 EEZRR

P S B R 8 OR 2 B H At T
THREARZEIERENER
RER (HTEMRFEANEE
REBENREEGEKERNHR
MEBXER)E T X o

(@) iz

AEBBBNEBFEH -
RETHEHEER &
EHERMAERT - R B EEK
BEPEBEZRERTER
IRMIBRNR 5 KT8 - Wiz
ZEENERBEERSA
NP REHNEEIT - BHE
EREBTEELETHH
MRz PTE R RIEERIE
BE-RAFERN ERK
BASEELEN M SR
& 491,154,000 T (=
T~ T4 49243,000% 7T)
MATEHBEEMNKR (=
—TF FFABR)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 47



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables and loan receivables based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and loan
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk a prolonged pandemic
could lead to increased credit default rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loan receivables
were approximately HK$38,998,000 (2020:
approximately HK$28,189,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$1,792,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,452,000)) and HK$119,013,000 (2020:
approximately HK$168,595,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$169,012,000 (2020: approximately
HK$100,934,000)).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHET R EEMS (#)
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty A TRERZ 2 EERR
(continued) (&)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables and loan b) EKEZEAREKE
receivables 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHE R EEME (&)

ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty AT RERZE 2 EERR

(continued) (&)
(c) Impairment of property, plant and () VF BERZREULRE
equipment and right-of-use assets HELEZHE

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
as at 31 December 2021 were Nil (2020:
approximately HK$5,000) and HK$395,000
(2020: Nil) respectively.

W% B MR A K AE
REEERARBRFINE
KOgE (E)F k- NE
TEERBHER A&H
B AE A S b 5T D E AT
fMEEEFHERL
KBEAERATETEE
EEBE: QEERHER
BREMA R W@ & B F
MREREE BIRREFSE
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H WE BERZEUAR
FRHEEEZEREEED
AT (T -FT4F: 495,000
77T ) 395,000 L (=&
ZTFF)o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 47

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
Ra

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 75 R R B

BE-ZT=

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is
denominated in HK$. The Group has certain
exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in United States dollars
("US$"), Australian dollars (“AUD") and
Renminbi ("“RMB"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the
risk of movements in exchange rates between
US$ and HK$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between US$ and
HK$.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed
on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in AUD and RMB as the directors
of the Company are of opinion that they are not
material to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(b) Price risk (b) B #% & B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (note 23).
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, loss
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2021
and accumulated losses would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$8,728,000 (2020:
approximately HK$6,105,000).

AEBTEEBERNDE
BRERAFEFABDZE
BMEE (ME23) 2 RAF
2 E T AR ERS
R-BEEEAEBEFEDT
R E B B ek EH A
EIEA BER - K& E K
RERRABREEZESE T EH
R BT 5

ATHEREDMIERR
¥ = H R B B B R B4

RREE -

WIRAES EF T #10%
TEZTFE10%) mME
R B e BIE
E-E-—F+=—A=+—
BIEFEz2RBEAMEEK
2 EBEBR L NG
8,728,000 L (=& =&
£ : 496,105,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—=%

B 795 R 2 B =

——F+=A=t-ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables arising
from the business of dealing in securities are due
within 2 trading days (2020: 2 trading days) after
the trade date and secured by client’s securities.
Trade receivables arising from other business are
due within 30 to 90 days (2020: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers other
than the cash clients of securities brokerage
business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables, as at 31 December 2021 and

JEKE R (E)

AEEZERRNEHEY
EEBREZEBAITERK
BHERRZEBRER BT
ERREEEETHE A
RAKSEBEZEEEE
KRBIKRRETEEPL DB
BREATREBEEN £
REBHREZEBEBBERET
SE—ITRAEETRE
PEWRZEE-FED -

TRHEIAWR T = —
ER-Z-F2FE+=A
Tt HASEEEREK

2020: EOBRRZEERR KA
HEEBECER:
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIEEE REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAET FETT
Past due [S%0g:
0 — 30 days 0Z30H 1.1% 34,842 (367)
31 - 60 days 31£260H 1.9% 2,976 (56)
61 — 90 days 61£290H 2.2% 803 (18)
Over 90 days 90H K E 62.3% 2,169 (1,351)
Total et 40,790 (1,792)
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r B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

Trade receivables (continued)

JEKE R (E)

2020
Gross
Expected loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
AR A X RERE 518 B 1%
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FA&TT FET
Past due [SFg:
0 — 30 days 0£230H 1.8% 10,179 (180)
31 - 60 days 31£60H 2.7% 1,707 (46)
61 — 90 days 61£90H 3.2% 10,324 (330)
Over 90 days 90H M E 12.1% 7,431 (896)
Total e 29,641 (1,452)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the trade receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H
Impairment losses recognised FABRZBEEE
for the year

At 31 December RN+—_A=+—H

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are
long overdue with significant amounts, known
insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. The Group recognised
the provision for ECL by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and
the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions.

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(c) FERMR (&)

JEKE R (E)

FA BERESERNER
BE2IHMT:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
1,452 1,043
340 409
1,792 1,452

A fE KB
BMEAASBEEKNZE

A CAENEEXTEE
B EWEE 2 Bt e W
IR 'R E R A EE R
At flh e AR BE BRI ER
AZEER B B X
KU El 2 AT RE 1 A K &
BITKBENRERBIE
EEERE-
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r B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for other
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H
Impairment losses reversed FREE ZBEEE

for the year

At 31 December RN+—_A=+—H

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount of the loan receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual's loan receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts.

128  SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 7R B R AR
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(c) FERMR (&)

A fEWHH (E)

479+ A U ROR 05 9
BESHOT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
336 466
(132) (130)
204 336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= =
GEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)
(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERAB (&)

Loan receivables (continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits
are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors of
the Company. The utilisation of credit limits
is regularly monitored. Loan receivables are
repayable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreements and all loan receivables are
recoverable within 1 year.

In determining the ECL of the Group's loan
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in
certain individual customers. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of the largest loan
receivables were approximately HK$27,722,000
(2020: approximately HK$52,372,000) and
was approximately 23% (2020: approximately
31%) of the Group’s total loan receivables. The
Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit history.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6.

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

BE-_ZT—
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

(c) FERMR (&)

Bt 75 L B B R ()

Loan receivables (continued) JEWEZ (&)
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER BREAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET
Loan receivables A= EN 58.7% 288,025 (169,012)
2020
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEE B X FREEE EEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET TET
Loan receivables FEWE R 37.4% 269,529 (100,934)
Movement in the loss allowance for loan FAR-EKE R EEBE
receivables during the year is as follows: SEIMT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
At 1 January n—H—H 100,934 13,182
Impairment losses recognised FABRBZBEEE
for the year 68,078 87,752
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 169,012 100,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

6. KEMREE (&)

(c) FERMR (&)

Loan receivables (continued)

JEWE K (4)

As at 31 December 2021
R=—TB=-—%+=-A=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FIRE  E22lER  E3RER et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET FET FHET

Loan receivables, gross & UX & Zk 48 58 - 138,599 149,426 288,025
Less Loss allowance BE B R - (19,586) (149,426) (169,012)
Loan receivables, net JEWE FF R - 119,013 - 119,013

As at 31 December 2020
RZEZEF+ZH=1+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FIREER FE2MEER FE3MEER Bst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET FHET TET

Loan receivables, gross [EWE K425 32,531 236,998 - 269,529
Less Loss allowance BE B S (756) (100,178) - (100,934)
Loan receivables, net B U B FROF R 31,775 136,820 - 168,595
The increase in loss allowance on loan BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—

receivables during the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly due to the gross amount
of loan receivables of approximately
HK$149,426,000 are in default and credit
impaired.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loan
receivables were secured by the shares of a listed
company of approximately HK$1,060,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,569,000).

HIEFE EBREREBEBER
HEENEFZEEARLSED
149,426,000/% JT H) FE W & &
EL MERXEMEN-

RZEZ—FR=_F=_F
+—A=+—H EREFH—
K L 2R Z B3 #91,060,000
BT (ZZT T F 491,569,000
PETT) R o
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ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—=%

——F+=A=t-ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or

if floating, based on rates current at the end of
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

6.

Bt 75 L B B R ()

(d) REBVE = E b2

AEBMNBKRARTEHHER
BRINTEHABESRE

AR H #4152 03R © %
H ENESHERBANR

HETHE-

R EBARAEE T A
TREBBZHBENIEE
%*%ﬁﬁumi(@%&
BHFERHE 2B
&m&&@ﬂ+uﬁ.mu
ERRZBITMNEHE
Zﬂéﬁ'>MU%H&$
EEUEAXNHREA
AT

On demand Total
or less than Between Between  undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2 and5 years cash flow
AR
EERKLME 1226 28558 BERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT AT FET

At 31 December 2021 RZBE--§+ZRA=1+- El
Trade and other payables EAESERREMERK 65,703 - - 65,703
Lease liabilities *ﬁ%ﬁf Ef 1,442 1,382 766 3,590
Bank loan RITER 2,905 - - 2,905
70,050 1,382 766 72,198

At 31 December 2020 _7_7¢+ A=t-H
Trade and other payables ERESERRHMERNRE 39,862 = = 39,862
Lease liabilities HE Ef 682 = = 632
Bank loan RITEK 3,584 = = 3,584
44,128 - - 44,128

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(e) A=

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group's loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank loans bear interests of fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

Except as stated above, the Group does not
have other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate
risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will
not have significant impact on the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements.

AEENRERENXME
R EBEIEB A KRITHE
SAEMR AEEZBRERR
HUNFBHFEABBE A
IR 2w E N X R R E
RIK

AEEZEKER BESR
ERRTERDYRETF
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R L5 o
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ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December

Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABRZZ
TREE

Financial assets REIEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost EHEE

Financial liabilities: eWMAasE:

Financial liabilities REEK ARG EZ
at amortised cost TRIBE

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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228,797 236,418
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wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations:  Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
e Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.
e Level 3 Fair value measured using significant
valuations:  unobservable inputs

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

7.

DNFEFE

TREVNAEERBREH KRR
REEEEFENEBRTAR
FE EAAFERETEMB®R
ERAFIF R FEFEMR
EZARFE=ZRRBEPETH
BNV EFEMGEENERTD
REENTHERMABNE
ABEMNABREREZRMEM

cE A EBUE-—LBWARE
HfE: FEAFE DEF

BEEXRENGEA
Hi 2 ERMIB AR

EHRE-
e FM UFEZ—LE\ AR
e EBRFE BIRERN

BE-—MHREZAE
R ABEB ALT
ERERTAERE
AEBE - TR B RS

ABIR B AT BAS T

S BIE 2 B ABUE -
cE=ZR UBXTAHBERHA
fBE: BEAERFE
AEENBRRANRERELY
BRREms ENERE H
RE=ZEREHRTER—EE
B BEBAREL -
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ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at
31 December:

AP EFE ()
Rt=A=t+-B2A¥HE
BARE -

Fair value measurements using:

AFEHEERUATER: Total
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 @t
F—& F-H B 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value BEMATHEE:
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFNABEL
— Listed equity securities - ERAES 87,284 - - 87,284
Fair value measurements using:
ATEGFEFAUNTER: Total
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 @t
- R E=H 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET FHT
Recurring fair value BEMATHEGE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRYZ
SHEE
- Listed equity securities — FTRAES 61,050 = = 61,050

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
were no transfers in the fair value hierarchy between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3 (2020: Nil).

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

4.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service line for the

year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts
with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15:
Disaggregated by major
products or service lines
Sales of telephones and related
components
Processing and trading of used
computer-related components
Commission from securities
dealing and brokerage services
Commission from placing and
underwriting service
B2B cross-border e-commerce

Revenue from other sources:

Money lending services

Interest and related income
from securities

Total revenue

ERMBREER
FBISHEEA 2
EFEAWE:

REBEMAMBR
gl e R A

HEER LA

BRELEE _TEK
AR AR 1
ELXZAE
EEMBHERFBEEZ
liika
CEHCEBERETFES

H ftb Iy 25 SRR

A& AR 7

ERELEZNBE N
B A

b &

i E B R R M
—F+=A=t+-BLEE
i =

W 25 A 4

FAREIBZEMARBRE D
BEFAa#WamAMAmT :

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
10,007 29,120
81,503 40,974
338 93
1,602 913
86,344 81,742
179,794 152,842
20,109 20,657
64 193
20,173 20,850
199,967 173,692
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ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

8. REVENUE (continued) 4. Wz (80)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi BA AR (4&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of REEBRNUTETEEMSZ LM
goods and services at a point in time and over time HRE -SSR RERGHEE
in the following major product line and geographical EEm kRIS EEH W
regions:
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Timing of revenue recognition: W BERERE :
At a point in time 75— B R B 179,794 152,842
Geographical market: WEMIF !
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") FZEARKEME ([FHEH])

(including Hong Kong) (BEEB) 113,368 91,810
India HE 333 3,015
Indonesia E1fE Fe i agn 52,687 21,972
Korea EEE - 6,170
Spain 7a It oF - 5,235
United States of America ("USA") EFRAZREH ([EH]) 5,311 8,284
Others HA 8,095 16,356

179,794 152,842
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hflx A
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Sundry income IR A 211 -
Government grant (note) B #E R (HAE) - 856
211 856
note: The amount mainly represents the receipts from Wit ZEFBEDEEREBRG

Employment Support Scheme provides by the
Hong Kong government. The conditions of the
government grant were fulfilled during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
as the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

The Group has five operating segments as follows:
(i) Sales of telephones and related components;

(ii) Processing and trading of used computer-related
components;

(iii) Money lending services;

(iv) Provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services; and

(v) B2B cross-border e-commerce.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different technology and marketing
strategies. The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting
policies. Segment profits or losses do not include
realised and unrealised gains and losses on financial
assets at FVTPL and unallocated administrative
expenses, finance costs and income tax (expense)/
credit. Segment assets do not include financial
assets at FVTPL and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated
corporate liabilities.

10. o EHR

ARBHITESTHRRER/AE
BONETEZLERKE LAEE
IR0 B B B AT A o
AEBEEATRELEDE:

(i) sHEERRMEEANT:

(i EENMNES _FEKEHA
B

)

(i) MIEARTS :

(iv) RERESERL EEREH
AR5 R

(v) EEHCEBEREFEL-

AEENAI 28D A R/ERS
[R] 22 dn K2 iR 7% 00 SR B SE 75 BB A6 -
R AR 2 5 2 kA R Bl Ko
MR WEBEEAZ2HRD
o RED MG A BRERNE
B & 5 BGRARR o 2 #00 F 3K s
BARRERAFEFABRZ
TREEZEEELKRERK
mREEERD RITHRAX
MERARMAER (BX) /K&
oD EEENBRBEAFER
ANERZEMEEREMARD
ERREE - DBHABTERER
Zol W/NCTE= N
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about operating segment profit

10. 7 HREH (@)

BREEDHENHEE

or loss, assets and liabilities EERBEZEH
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and B2B
Telephones  computer- underwriting  cross-border
and related related services  e-commerce
components  components Money — REEE&E. i)
EER  -FEH lending RER  LEER Total
REAE  BBaH HE  BEEE  ETEE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn TEn TEn TAn TAn
For the year ended HE-3--F
31 December 2021 +-B=1-8
LEE
Revenue W& 10,007 81,503 20,109 2,004 86,344 199,967
Segment (loss)/profit A% (F8) /A (999) 284 (61,884) (2,825) 612 (64,812)
Unrealised gain on financial EATEFARSRY
assets at FVTPL SHEEY
RERNE Ul
Realised gain on financial RATEIABEL
assets at FVTPL SHEAEY
BERNE 16
Unallocated expenses AAERR (9,163)
Finance costs BENK (470)
Loss before tax BHAEE (57,686)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--F
tZA=t-H
Segment assets PHEE 244 12,889 120,080 251 30,489 186,274
Unallocated assets AOREE 142,708
328,982
Seqment liabilities ARak (28,983) (4,494) (9482) (11,945 (13582)  (68,486)
Unallocated liabilities AAREE (3,488)
(71,974)

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 W& (&)
Information about operating segment profit BREAKE D= A EE
or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) EEREEBEZEN (&)
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and B28
Telephones  computer- underwriting  cross-border
and related related services  e-commerce
components  components Money — RAAEH- tEY
B4k —FEK lending RER  LXER Total

LTI BE  BERE  ETEE &
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

For the year ended HE-3-%%
31 December 2020 t-A=1-A
i2:3:5
Revenue i 29,120 40,974 20,657 1,199 81,742 173,692
Segment (loss)/profit A3 (BR) /&7 (1,681) 344 (67,253) (1,394) (1,230) (71,214)

Unrealised gain on financial RATETABEL

assets at FVTPL SREEY
RERRE 10
Realised loss on financial BLTETABRY
assets at FVTPL SREEY
EERER (431)
Unallocated expenses APERX (9,091)
Finance costs BERK (188)
Loss before tax B nEE (70,350)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-%E
+ZA=+-H
Seqment assets HHEE 769 12,532 170,880 2,043 23,440 229,664
Unallocated assets APREE 69,489
299,153
Seqment liabilities ARafk (28,489) 4,118) (20) (5,718) (77) (38,422)
Unallocated liabilities APEBE (5,699)
(44.121)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Telephones
and related
components
EiR
BREn
HK$'000
TiEx
Amounts included inthe 51 E 7 FE&AEFH
measure of E7:h
seqment profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, 1% BERZEE
plant and equipment -
Depreciation of right-of-use FFEEE &
assets -
Impairment property, plant 1% BE R B 2B (E
and equipment =
Impaiment of right-of-use  EFEEE 2R E
assels -
Unrealised gain on financial BATE:AERZ
assets at FVTPL SRER AR RNE -
Realised gain on financial  RATEiTABEZ
assets at FVTPL SREE EERNE -
Provision for ECLon loan B EF RS E
receivables EEAE -
Provision/(reversal) of ECL -~ BN E AFERBEE
on trade receivables Big&E/ (B@) 633
Reversal of ECLon other At ENFERSEE
receivables BRED (12)
Share-based payment  WRGBERZAFFER
expense -
Interest expense HERX -
Additions to right-of-use ~ EFEEERE
asses -

Used
computer-
related
components
“FER
BBaH
HKS'000
TR

56

52

(52)

452

10. 2 WME R (80
Hitt o ZBEHR
BE-Z-_—%+
BLEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
placing and B28
underwriting ~ cross-horder
services  e-commerce
Money —REEL.  fEHLE
lending EER  BEHE7  Unallocated
HE  B#ER B xAR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TR Tin
a4 - 5 -
1,086 - - -
1,890 - - -
2,895 - - -
- - - (16,783)
- - - (16)
68,078 - - -
- - (345) -
() . . (65)
- - - 2,819
- - - 188
3,980 - - -

Total
it
HK$'000
T#n

1
1,142
1890
2895

(16,743)

(16)
68,078
340
(132)

2819
188

4,432

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-T-—S+-A=1+—HALtEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 B E# (&)
Other segment information (continued) Hih o BER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bz T _FF+_A=+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
Used placing and B28
Telephones ~ computer- underwriting ~ cross-border
and related related services  e-commerce
components  components Money it AEHEE
Bik  CFEK lending BER  BHRET  Unallocated Total

HRAk  BEAR KR BHRH Al ol it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKFOOO  HK$'000
TAT TR THT TAT ThT TATL TATL

Amounts included in the ~ i+E5 TERFEEL

measure of E7:h

seqment profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, 1% BERZENE

plant and equipment - - - 25 - - 255
Unrealised gain on financial BATE:ABRZ

assets at FVTPL tRER AR RNE - - - - - (10,574) (10,574)
Realised loss on financial ~ FATEiABR?

assets at FVTPL SHEEBENEE - - - - - 431 431
Provision for ECLon loan BN &3 BHEE

receivables FiERfE - - 87,752 - - - 81,752
Provision forffreversal of) W E AHERBEE

ECLon trade receivables BB/ (BE) (127) 2 - 64 446 ) 409
Reversal of ECLon other ~ EfEUFUERHEE

receivables BRED (130) - - - - S (130)
Loss on disposal of property, &% - R Rk

plant and equipment BB - - - 49 - = 49
Share-based payment  HIEHAEEZARER

expense - - - - - 2520 2520
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ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=-Z=

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed

below:

PRC
(including Hong Kong)
India
Indonesia
Korea
Spain
USA
Others

B
(BREE)

ENE
EEEm:
451

Cipliss

XHE

HAt

10. 2 E R (@)
ih & & R
AEBFZKLEMESE 5K B
ARPZWHERIZEENEE
DZIEMBEEZER M
T

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

RENMREF 2R FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT TET TAET
133,541 112,660 395 5
333 3,015 - -
52,687 21,972 - -
- 6,170 - -
- 5,235 - -
5,311 8,284 - -
8,095 16,356 - -
199,967 173,692 395 5

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

11.

Revenue from major customers

Revenues from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Customer A (note 1) BER(BiE1)
Customer B (note 1) BE L (K1)
Customer C (note 2) XER(Wit2)

note 1:Revenue from B2B cross-border e-commerce
segment.

note 2: Revenue from processing and trading of used
computer-related components segment.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE
Interest on bank loan RITERZAE

Y

10. 7 HREH (@)

REFEEF 2R HE
RIEEFEMAEBR BB
10% 2EFWz=MT -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
27,470 28,044
68,881 53,698

29,955 N/A i@ A

B RECEHCEEEETH
5 22 Wi

Bfatz: KB —FEMBBAGERE

BRESH Uk
1. BB R A

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

186 98

284 90

470 188
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r B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12.FiBHMAx (E&)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAF{ 1B — & B FIEH
Under/(over)-provision BAEFERETRE
in prior years (HEERR ) 198 (243)
Deferred tax EREFR I8 956 =
1,154 (243)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries either did not have assessable
profit or had sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset against current year’s assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations established in Hong Kong will
be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 as the Group’s PRC subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits during the years.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

HE_T-_—FRZZTZFF
+-—A=+—BHULEFE FEF
BRI RREEE W HRE AR
H REAXEBRBHEB QA
WARELERRD G NKEEER
WMEIBBEAREEEE A
FERRBAEF -

BHE-_S-_—Fk-_ZT-_Z2F
+—A=Z+—BLFE REF
BRAEH REBXNILHE
& 1> % 52,000,000% T 2 fE
R 2 MERRGHERE
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wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=%

12. i 15
()

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/

——F+=-A=+—-HLEE

SHX (E%)

PREBR, (ER)@2EEF

(credit) and loss before tax multiplied by the Hong B R IR AR T AT B 18 2 3R
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows: BZEBRWMT :
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loss before tax B B¢ AT B 18 (57,686) (70,350)
Tax at the domestic income tax BRARM TS %E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZE-_ZFF:165%)
B ZHIA (9,518) (11,608)
Tax effect of expenses not B TR
deductible for tax purpose XEzBETE 1,320 619
Tax effect of income not taxable BB ETFIH 2
for tax purpose WA Z B2 (2,763) (1,816)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERZMIBEE 2
recognised MR E 11,611 14,505
Tax effect of temporary difference =~ AERZEHRHEFEZ
not recognised MBRE 1,321 (23)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  EHFLAE R ER
not previously recognised MEBBzMETE (1,003) (1,677)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax regime  FISFMAH 2 HiEF 2 (6) -
Tax concession HIER R (6) -
Under/(over)-provision in prior years @EFEBEE L
(HBEEB) 198 (243)
Tax charge/(credit) for the year AFEHESL (EE) 1,154 (243)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

13.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

Directors’ emoluments
Other staff costs

Total directors’ emoluments and
other staff costs (note)

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of goods sold and services
recognised as an expense

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use asset

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Equity-settled share-based
payments (note)

Provision for ECL on trade
receivables

Reversal of ECL on other
receivables

Provision for ECL on loan
receivables

Expenses related to short term lease

COVID-19 related rent concessions
received

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange losses

note:

Equity-settled share-based payments of approximately
HK$564,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,044,000) and
HK$2,255,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,476,000) were
included in directors’ emoluments and other staff costs

respectively.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

13.XFEEIE

AEBAFEBEIDNAR

(FFA) AT BIREED:

EEMe
Hfth 8 T AR

EEMEeREMEBT
AR (H1it)

A% 2B B
ERASXHZEEEMK
AR 75 A A
ME BERREZITE

EREEEZTE
EREEEZE
WE - BB KRR ZRE

AR EER D BER 2
SR (K )

Z S RKERF ZTEH
EEBERE

H fth & U 5K B 2 T8 HF
EEEERR
EUWERZEHEE

B BB

A ERBERX
BWFERSER
(COVID-19) fBE#H & &l &
HEWE -BEX

R BB

& 5 BB 5 R

Bt -

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
1,287 2,253
6,342 7,040
7,629 9,293
600 600
174,624 148,104
429 25
1,142 =
2,895 =
1,890 =
2,819 2,520
340 409
(132) (130)
68,078 87,752
— 291
(29) (67)
— 49
50 44

URAZEERHDAERZ MR
#564,0008 L (Z T T F 1 4
1,044,000/ 7T ) }&2,255,000% 7T
(ZZE =T F 491,476,000/ 7T) H

BIEt A AEZEME R EMB TRA-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14.EEE/AMAX
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Employee benefits expense EERAMX
(including directors’ (BIEESHE) :
emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥4 - fE 4L}z B 4,616 6,566
Equity-settled share-based AR AR GEE RGN B
payments (note 13) Bt 2 AT
(Htit13) 2,819 2,520
Retirement benefit scheme RIKE AT 8IH5R
contributions (note) (H1it) 194 207
7,629 9,293
note: oz

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

AEERBEFEGRHERTRESFE
GO RMBEREARERREERES
HgHlE e 8 ([REEE
B AEBEHRESE 2 HX
DREFEZ5%AE (BUETE
AzBeeBETHBE,500%T)
MAAKEFARRESTEZEE
WK BREBEEME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included one (2020: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 15. The emoluments of the remaining five
(2020: four) individuals are set out below (note):

Basic salaries and allowances EXR% & KR

Equity-settled share-based payments AR A& E %5 &
B2 AR

Retirement benefit scheme RKEFIFH B 5K

contributions

14. BEER|AIFRX (&)

FEREHMAL

AEBRFARANEL RS H
ALTERE-—REF(ZT_F
Fi—R) HHEMERWMFE15
2O A-HTITRAZ(ZF
—EFEMB)ZEHEMEIN DT
(KIEE) :

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
2,356 3,199

282 -

99 72

2,737 3,271

2021 2020

No. of No. of
employees employees

BEAH BE A

Their emoluments were within FEZHEBRATEHE :
the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&

1,500,000 7T

During years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company’s five highest paid individuals included
six individuals due to the fifth and sixth individuals
received equal remuneration.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

HE_TS-_—FR-ZFT_FF
+_A=Z+—BLFE X&£H
YTERAFNAZESHFALX
Nie  EREMAR AR
SESMNRE KEABTE

f&-

Fiadg- g2 =-—F+= A
=+—BLEFE -AQARA
EEEBFALTBEESNZALT
BFERAFRBERENGBAL
EBSRZSEHH-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15.EEF/RARES

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz-F=-_—-%+=A
=+—HLEEE

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based

benefits scheme payment Total
Fees 4 BAREF UBRHBAE  emoluments
we Hit @A FEIME  ERZAR aMe
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
Thx ThEn TEL FAT TEL

Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Chow Hei Yin BB L L)

Terry (note iff) - 180 9 282 47
Mr. Zhu Yugi RFERLE - 180 9 - 189
Independent BUINTEE

non-executive

directors
Ms. Huang Zhi (note )~ E3a/MB(fi##) 45 - - 282 327
Mr. Man Yuan WE L E 120 - = = 120
Mr. Ma Kin Ling SRERE 180 - - - 180

345 360 18 564 1,287
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Executive directors HIEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen  Malcolm Stephen

Jacobs-Paton (note ij)  Jacobs-Paton % (i)

Mr. Chow Hei Yin BEE R E (i)
Terry (note ifj)

Mr. Zhu Yugi RFEEE

Independent BUHBTEE
non-executive
directors

Ms. Lu Bei Lin(note ij) BRI T L(H7#i)

Mr. Man Yuan WE L E

Mr. Ma Kin Ling SRELE

Note:

(i)  Appointed on 31 March 2021

(i) Resigned on 31 December 2020

(iii) Appointed on 31 December 2020

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. No
emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the chief executive of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

15. 55/ ER (&)

(a) EEM = (&)
HE_Z_2F+ = A

=+—BLFE
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based
benefits scheme payment Total
Fees N BB ABRBE  emoluments
ok En SEIR ERZAR ae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TAT
- 580 - - 580
- 180 9 261 450
140 - - 261 401
120 - - 261 381
180 - - 261 441
440 760 9 1,044 2,253
Brat -

() RZTBZ—F=A=+—
ARZT

(i) "ZZE2E2=_FF+ = A
—t+—BET

(i RZFE-_ZEE+ = A
=+t HEZE

HE_T-_—Fk=-_F=
TFE+_A=+—HLF
B YEEEIZSITHA
BREXRENELMHH
B B0 22 B o N & B 3 A (Al E
MBEEHRARA) & ITH
ABXHBIE EBEMA
SR AN AR & B s ) 2R -
HERBEERE(E-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 38, no other significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2021, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2020: Nil).

15. 55/ ER (&)

(b) EERR G - ZHHEHN
ZERER
B B RE38FAT X B8 & SN MK
FRYMNAFEAIMER
AR A HEAETH B QA
BEFLEMEAEER
BEEMARRESERE
FXBEEALIRETERE
IEHEREEEAEAZE

KRR RHRELH-
16. R 2

BE-T-—F+=-A=1+—
A 1 5 3 R 8 5 R
RS B R A A SR AR T A
BERZEEABRE(ZFF
FE)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

17.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

Loss BB

Loss for the year attributable to ARETEFRER
owners of the Company for EEZAXAERS A
the purpose of basic loss per share &1l & A 518

Number of shares k5 8B

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purpose of  [E51E 2 L @A
basic loss per share InHEFEHE

For the purpose of calculation of basic loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
share consolidation of the Company being effective
on 26 March 2020 was deemed to be effective
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

No diluted loss per share is presented for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, as the
outstanding share options did not have any dilutive
effect and was not included in the calculation of
diluted loss per share.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

ARFESRER

17.8RE#E

ARRHEBEANBEERELRR

BEERIRBEATEUERE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#7 FiT
(58,753) (70,107)
2021 2020
‘000 ‘000

B T8
1,154,471 822,727

HEtEHE-_ZT-_TF+_A
S+t HBLEEFENERELRES
BME ARARR_ZE_TF=
A+ "BEBZ2BMDE H®
BREREZE-_ZTE-_TF+_-A
=+—HBLEFE—EBEBEX-

P 1R R 17 {50 B AR M N0 R AT )
BEERAGTESREEEIE
R ARGHAEEAN WEEZ
T FR-_ZFE_ZTF+_H
T+ HUIEEEZSREEES
BIWRZ5 -
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wrE MR MR

Cost
At 1 January 2020
Disposal

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021
Addition

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 January 2020

Disposal

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Charge for the year
Impairment

At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % BMERRE

R=2=--%+=-A=t+-AH
R MERAE
R-_E-_TF—-—A=+—H

HE
FRAXH

R-E-EF+-F=+—H
k—E-—%—H—H
FRAY L

A
R-ZE--%+ZB=+-H

REE
R=F=--%+=-A=t+-AH

R_E-_EF+-A=+—H

—F+ZA=+-BLEE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment
HEMX B Total
230 KBERRE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET
1,503 832 2,335
(1,503) (389) (1,892)
= 443 443
2,314 - 2,314
2,314 443 2,757
1,428 828 2,256
(1,453) (390) (1,843)
25 - 25
= 438 438
424 5 429
1,890 - 1,890
2,314 443 2,757
= 5 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

19. RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS

At 1 January 2021
Additions
Depreciation
Impairment

At 31 December 2021

19.CEFEEE

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$'000

FET

R-—ZETE-——F—H—H =
NE 4,432
e (1,142)
BE (2,895)
R-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 395

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$3,366,000
(2020: HK$675,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$395,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as

security for borrowing purposes.

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Interest on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs)

COVID-19 Related rent concessions
received

156 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7#efis AR AR

FREEEY
WERX
FREEEZITE
HEABENFE
(T AR FERA)
2 Y CoVID-19+8 7
HemE

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
493,366,000 L (Z T T F:
675,000/% 7T ) B 1H & B & 5 4H
B8 (¥ F # & E £9395,000%8 7T
TETFE E)EER KR
MARBEHEEENERER
SN T & 1 & 0 M BE AN £E ] 2
H-HEBETBIERABRAE
R

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET
1,142 -
2,895 -
186 98
(29) (67)




19.

20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

RIGHT OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 34(c).

As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted
the Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions beyond June 2021, and applied
the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions
received by the Group during the period. Further
details are disclosed below.

For both years, the Group leases an office and
warehouse for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 3.6
years (2020: 3 years), but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the

19. EHEEE (#)

ERHERREREZFHBE
BT 5E34(c) °

WA EIFTEE - AEBE R
AR E BT SRS ERE16
BB AR) RZE=-Z—F X
A LA1& %778 " & < 7| (COVID-19)
HERSRE THAEERAK
HEWBR T E Tt A
CREFAERETH L —
WHBEER T

RABEERN ~AEEAEXER
HERAZEREE-HEAHN
Bl EHR AB2FE3I6F (T =
TH3F) R BREH R
LE (B T3 prit) - 70 & ff 5K
TIREREEER TESEE
A [R) B9 A SR B2 A6 14 o 7 78 7E 7 B
K 514 1S B] BXOE HA A B R B -
AEBRERBAEANERLEE

definition of a contract and determines the period & R ATEITHHARR o
for which the contract is enforceable.
DEPOSITS 20. % &
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Deposits with the Stock Exchange B FTiR &
— Compensation fund —fEES 50 50
_ Fidelity fund ~ERES 50 50
— Stamp duty deposit —HER RS 5 5
Contribution of guarantee fund paid Eff&EFREH
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing ERAR ([BEEBEHE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC") BERESMHK 50 50
Admission fee paid to HKSCC ENEAGEELEE 50 50
205 205
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from BEHERHEBEERZ
the ordinary course of AT XBARE
business of dealing in EENEKRES
securities transactions: AR
— Cash clients —HeEP

Less: Allowance for ECL B EHEER

EERE

Trade receivables from other HihBEEBABIE
ordinary course of business, EXNENES
other than business of dealing BER (FBHEXH
in securities transactions BB XBRIN)

Less: Allowance for ECL B TEEEER

BB

Deposits in brokerage firms N RN i

Deposits, prepayments and Ee BANRIER
other receivables H b fE W 5K IR

Less: Allowance for ECL B TEHEE

BRI

Total trade and other receivables FEWE 5 B R &
Hith B UK FRIE 42 58

1H8  SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 7wkt AR AR

1. ERESIRFI R HEMEY

MIE
2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Mt FET FAT
(a) 4,956 2,353
(64) (64)
4,892 2,289
(b) 35,834 27,288
(1,728) (1,388)
34,106 25,900
4,430 4,432
(c) 18,617 8,634
(204) (336)
22,843 12,730
61,841 40,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the

business of dealing in securities

The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its outstanding trade receivables and has
procedures and policies to assess its clients’
credit quality and defines credit limits for each
client. All client acceptances and credit limit are
approved by designated approvers according to
the clients’ credit worthiness.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables
from clients and clearing house arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are 2 trading days (2020: 2
trading days) after the trade date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables arising
from the ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities transactions, based on trading date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

0-30 days 0&30H

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H M E

1. ERESIRFI R HEMEY
IE (#)

(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE
W & 5 BR K

REENKEREHER
Ye el 2 fE 8 5 Bk K - W R
ERFMEBRFAHEEERP
MEEERURATEER
FHREERBE -EAEFPH
—EEREEREGH
EERHLABREBEEFH
EEEL-

REBEHFKLERBE 2B EZE
BREPEEANEREP
MEEFRBSRZMWES
HEHAR S HHEMIE
RGP (ZE_ZFF WA
RHH) e

BHERPEEEBZAE
EGBREELIZREES
B (MBRBHER)REXR
VR EX A S it

T
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
4,575 79
3 —_
3 —
311 2,210
4,892 2,289
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the

business of dealing in securities
(continued)

Trade receivables due from cash clients are
secured by clients’ securities, which are publicly
traded equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
fair values of the securities as at 31 December
2021 were approximately HK$19,180,000
(2020: approximately HK$19,925,000). As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, all balances were
secured by sufficient collateral on an individual
basis.

In addition, the Group has a policy for
determining the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables without sufficient collateral
based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past
collection history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date the credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date and the fair values of the
collateral held.

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing
in securities are denominated in HKS$.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

1. ERESIRFI R HEMEY

MIE ()

(a) =&

S BEEXBELEZE
W E 5 IR (&)

EREeEFPFHEKRES
ERUEFHZES (REE
AHEBEEZ EWRAES)
EEF -FHER T = —
F+-_A=+—BHRF
{E#7/419,180,000/ 7T ( =
T - FF:4919,925,00078
L) RZEBEZ_—FR=F
—EF+-_A=+—8"'F
E#EBHRERNEERF
EEFmiEERR -

BEAN REEREBRE R
15 % AT W O 1 B9 AT Ml B AR
BOREDITEREEEN
A (BREBEEPHNIE
2 A B WERECER)
EEAREZRER W
FEUE 5 R FUBE R

REERKBZERERZA
Wi (a1 B - AR SR L R R U
BERFXEBVBEREESR
BHEEEREAHIL(E
EEEMMFEARZA
FEZERIEE-

AEBREEFEEEY
2 FEWE 5 MR R Bk E A
A TTEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Trade receivables arising from other

businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days (2020: 30 to 90 days) to its customers. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from
other course of business other than business
of dealing in securities transactions, based on
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

0 — 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H M E

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out in note 6(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of the Group’'s trade
receivables arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

Amount due from a subsidiary’s director
of approximately HK$4,717,000 (net of
allowance of HK$89,000) (2020: approximately
HK$5,320,000 (net of allowance of HK$142,000))
was included in the deposits, prepayments and
other receivables. The amount due is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

wrE MR MR

—F+ZA=+-BLEE

1. ERESIRFI R HEMEY

I ()

(b) HitRkBEE ZBWE

2 R

AEEXR TFTERF30E90
B(ZZ=-Z%:30%90H)
ZEEH BRESFRFEE
X% BEHMEBKARE
2 EWE SRR (OB &
HER)BREBEZ2ELBHZY 2
BRE DT T

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET
10,352 9,916
7,757 1,661
7,192 9,994
8,805 4,329
34,106 25,900

AEEBREREMAHER
MeErtdbmERFPZREE
BXYHEREREPZE
ERBE -FEPEGSHNEERER
HEFERIMK-

RBEE_T-_—FK=_Z%
—_EF+_-_A=+—HI1t
FERKE SRR BE
FEFBHNEA YR
= HTEE6(C) ©

AEBREEMBEBZE
YWE 5 R BRE E A E
JCRHE

EW—HKNBARZES
2 IRITEHIA,717,0007 7T (0
B 5 189,000 L) (=&
—ZTF 45,320,000/ JT
(B B HE142,0008 7T) )
Bt AZe FBEARERE
HEKRRIE - EWNSERE
KR 28 RAEREERE
;Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

22.LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. ERER
The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the BWE RN R D TEFRE
remaining contractual maturity date: ARNEIR 2% :
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 170,978 157,023
91 - 180 days 912 180H 39,640 50,267
181 — 365 days 181%365H 77,407 62,239
288,025 269,529
Less: Allowance for ECL B TEHEEEERE (169,012) (100,934)
119,013 168,595
The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money AEBZERKRERKRBEHNESE
lending business. e
The loan receivables are repayable in accordance FEU S 5K E IR IR B 5K el 2 R
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan FEE BFIEERKERAIN—
receivables are recoverable within 1 year (2020: 1 FARE (ZZT=FF:—F)o
year).
The Group's loan receivables contain clauses which AEBERRKEFRHEERBE 2B
reserved the right at sole discretion to demand R TE PO E a] B AT 2 SR BD A A& K
immediate repayment at any time irrespective BN EMER THRIERARS
of whether the borrowers have complied with EETHERALBITEENENK
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment B
obligations.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's loan RZFZ—F+-A=+—8H"
receivables are denominated in HK$ and carried at AEEMNRKERAEITEE
fixed effective interest rate ranging from 8% to 10% REETEBRFNENF8% E
(2020: 8% to 10%) per annum and with the terms 10% (ZE=ZFF: 8% £10% )
of 1 to 2 years (2020: 1 to 2 years). FECHRAE—EMF(ZEZ
TFE:—FEMF) e

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

2. BAFEFABEEZZER
BE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, A& Fh 2 AN %

at fair value b /N S

The equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held
for trading purpose and are measured at FVTPL in
accordance with HKFRS 9. The investments in listed
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity
for return through dividend income and fair value
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.
The fair values of listed securities are based on
current bid prices.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
87.284 61,050

REBLMZBRAZBHZFDAR
Z B mFELREEE M
HEEFIRIR A FEFTAR
BB RAKEREEBEE
BEWARDFEYEESD
W) ETRAESFRE - ZFR
BVEBEEINHAXKES R £
MEFNRFESDERB RN

BEAEBEE-

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. & RBITHEER
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Bank balances RITHER
— Segregated accounts for —RNEBEBBERERE
dealing with clients’ money in BEFPFESZBIURP
the ordinary course of business 7,223 5,620
— House accounts —BEERP 52,859 21,553
Cash on hand FERSE 16 62
60,098 27,235
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Represented by: =K
— Client accounts (note)
— House accounts

—BEERF

note:

As at 31 December 2021, include in bank balance -
client accounts of approximately HK$7,223,000 (2020:
approximately HK$5,620,000) was money deposited by
clients in the course of business of dealing in securities.
The Group has recognised the corresponding amount in
trade payables (note 25). The Group currently does not
have a legally enforceable right to offset these payables
with deposit placed and use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
AUD SBIT
us$ X7
HK$ BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

—EPFERFP (&)

20, M RBITHER (@)

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
7,223 5,620
52,875 21,615
60,098 27,235

Bret

R—ZE-Z—F+-A=+—8 &
ANRTTHE B B FEF 47,223,000
BIL(ZE ZFF : 45,620,000
TL)REFPRESRX XK BEF
T)\Eﬁiéf% AEEERENES

KR ERAEBERIE (FE25) o K
ﬁliﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ/z&T%ﬂﬁE@ﬁE%u'
AEBRT AR EKEZZERMTR
REFEREFPHRERITHEER-

R|EHR NEB2HE MR
R T HEEEHE

171

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET
66 28

6 6

3,757 4,815
56,269 22,386
60,098 27,235

AR H RN Ty /8 B <F
B SN DE B I R 1) K A B - S [ K
NEEBRE -AM AEEE
NFFBRBERERSINE EB
MIRITTHARBELBRREME
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

5. ENEZRIAREMEN

MIE
2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
lligz3 FET FHET
Trade payables arising from the HREHFRXZEEEKZ
ordinary course of business of BEEBBREPES
dealing in securities transactions: HYEfT & SR :
— Cash clients —-ReRP (a) 11,823 5,616
Trade payables from purchase of R E b B & %%
goods arising from other (BHFRXHEEEK
ordinary course of business, BroN) BIZEHIEE
other than business of BmES S ER
dealing in securities transactions & SR (b) 40,704 26,545
Other payables and H A & 7T IR &
accrued expenses JEETRAX (c) 12,976 7,701
Provision for reinstatement cost 18 JR X AN 5 (d) 200 -
65,703 39,862
(a) Trade payables arising from the business (a) BB EEXBEENE
of dealing in securities NEZBRN

The trade payables balances arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for
the money held on behalf of clients at the
segregated bank accounts which are repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The carrying amount of the Group’'s trade
payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are denominated in HK$.

EHFRLERBEBEEXSEA
BPELENENE SR
EHR—BRRXHHEMBMEM
BERZEAEE EREP
RBILRTEPBEAZE
CRABFEEE - BRARF
EERA ERREBNK
Bk oML EFEINE
B W ERBERE DT

AEEREEFEEERK
ZENEZERFOEEE
ABTEHE .
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) Trade payables arising from other
businesses

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on
the invoice date, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%308

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 612908
Over 90 days 90B A k

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges
from 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60 days).

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
payable arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

() No amount due to a securities broker (2020:
HK$968,000 with 8.5% interest rate per annum
and repayable on demand) was included in other
payables and accrued expenses.
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25. BENESRRKREMER

A (&)

(b) Hib R FrELENEN

B 2 IR

REZHHZENE K
RZEREBEDTEIAT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
8,390 814
4,112 =
702 146
27,500 25,585
40,704 26,545

BEEREEHN T30
608 (—E-F4% :30%60

AEERE R
1B 5 B 3 ¢ B M DA 22
T -

BMERNBEHLLAZRK
B(ZEZTF RFMN=E
85% i EWREREE Y
FXIE968,000/ 7T ) B 5t A
HMEMNRBEREFER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 5. BENEZRAREMES
Eo =
FIE (%)

(d) Movement of the provision for (d) BRHRAEEEE
reinstatement cost

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAET

At 1 January n—H—H - -~
Provision for reinstatement cost F R#ER Z 18 R AKX A B &

recognised during the year 200 -

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H” 200 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

26.LEASE LIABILITIES 26.7HEBE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BERERE BERERERE
2021 2020 2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRT TER TRET

Within one year —FR 1,442 682 1,304 675
In the second to E_FREREF

fifth years, inclusive (BREEMTF) 2,148 - 2,062 -

3,590 682 3,366 675

Less: Future finance charges B RANBER (224) (7) NATER NATER

Present value of lease obligations ~ HEETRE 3,366 675 3,366 675

Less: Amount due for settlement 35 : 1218 A R 2

within 12 months (shown HeEme s
under current liabilities) (RRBEaE
BTE5) (1,304) (675)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A 1% 21| 59
after 12 months EENEE 2,062 -
All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$. FrEREaBEHANETE.
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease EAREHEAEEMEBERN
liabilities is 5% (2020: 6.03%). MEAES5% (ZF =T F:

6.03% ) °
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27. BANK LOAN

Secured bank loan

Scheduled payment terms of
bank loan contain a repayment on
demand clause (shown under

current liabilities):

Within one year

More than one year,
but within two years

More than two years,
but within five years

wrE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

27.8R1TER

BHEMBITER

ﬁﬁ%ﬂzﬁ%i%

RN BE AN
mxﬁﬂ21%
(FIARBEE) :
—FR
HiE—FENBERNF

?

HeMFEITERRS

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
2,905 3,584
728 679

776 728
1,401 2,177
2,905 3,584
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27. BANK LOAN (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in HKS.

The average interest rate at 31 December 2021 was
6.07% (2020: 6.07%).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Group's bank
loan was guaranteed by (i) Mr. Ma Pun Fai, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and (i) the HKMC
Insurance Limited of HK$3,420,000.

The Group's bank borrowings contain clauses which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
loan covenants. Its repayments up to date are in
accordance with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans. The Group does not consider that the
banks will probably exercise their discretions to
demand repayments so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

27.8B1TEF (@)

AEBEENRETENE T
&

R-—TE-_—F+=-A=+—8H
B FH R ER6.07% (ZE=F
F:6.07%) °

RZEBE-—F T -F
+—A=+—"B &AEBZR
TERDAGOARR —FEWBE

NAIZ —REESFWEBLER
(INVEBRBFRBERRAAZ
3,420,000 LHE IR -

AEERITEREMHEET T
mASERAEETHBENRE
BEETRENERE ML &M
wIERR AR TRITE2EBIBHER
ERAREBEREERAER -

AEEEHERERLGDEST
ERLH-HBEHAMERTD
RERE RN ERFERAETT
AEERRREASEEEN
BREMRE  BRITAKRAEETT
FEHEREFNBEE - ARAA
SERDESRRELNE—
THBHENGEE P HHRERME
6(d) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised
by the Group.

28. B IBEE

ST 7 5 B B 4R SR AT LR
A

Provision
of ECL
HHREE
BEEE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 N_ZE_FTF—H—H-
and 1 January 2021 —ZEEF+A=T—HK
—E-—%—H—H 979
Credit to profit or loss for the year FFAREEEE (Mit12)
(note 12) (956)
At 31 December 2021 R_ZB_—%+_-_H=+—H 23

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$238,630,000
(2020: approximately HK$174,341,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Except for the tax losses of
approximately HK$4,079,000 (2020: approximately
HK$5,851,000) will be expired in 5 years from the
year of origination, the remaining tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

&SR - NEE A ] 4K 8
HigERBaFMRERRE
518 49238,630,000/8 T ( = &
—ZTF:#49174,341,0008 7T ) °
MR BEEF RO ER M
WERZEBERRAECHIE
BE -BRBIIEEE 44,079,000
BT (ZZE ZFF : 495,851,000
BIT) G BRI FEE R AEE
HASN - 8 TR IE S 18 ] | R B A
$§;o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

At 1 January, ordinary share of
HK$0.006

Share consolidation (note )

At 31 December, ordinary share
of HK$0.006

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January, ordinary share of
HK$0.006

Share consolidation (note i)

Placing of shares (note j)

At 31 December, ordinary share
of HK$0.006

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

BE-T-_—F+-A=+—-HLEE
29. & Z
2021 2020
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
EERYA tE TEREA 8
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TR T’ TET
EE:
Mm—A—8"0.006
BLZLRR 100,000,000 600,000  2,000,000,000 600,000
BRI E B (A7) - - (1,900,000,000) -
R+-A=+—-8"
0.006% L2 L@k 100,000,000 600,000 100,000,000 600,000
BRTRAR:
»m—A—0"0.006
BTz ERER 912,937 5,477 15,215,731 4,564
RiD& G (A7) - - (14,454,944) -
BRIDEE (fei) 580,000 3,481 152,150 913
W+=ZA=+—-8"
0.006 T2 EBR 1,492,937 8,958 912,937 5,477
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-T-—S+-A=1+—HALtEE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to ordinary resolution passed by shareholders
at extraordinary meeting of the Company on
24 March 2020, the Company effected the
consolidation of the issued and unissued ordinary
shares of the Company on the basis that every 20
ordinary shares of HK$0.0003 each into one ordinary
share of HK$0.006 each on 26 March 2020. Details of
the share consolidation are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 February 2020, 6 March
2020 and 24 March 2020 respectively.

On 5 August 2020, the Company and the placing
agent entered into the placing agreement pursuant
to which the placing agent has conditionally agreed
to place, on a best effort basis, to not less than six
placees, for up to 152,150,000 placing shares at
the placing price of HK$0.09 per placing share. The
placing of new shares was completed on 25 August
2020. The Company received net proceeds, after
deducting the related expenses and the other
related expenses, from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$13,700,000.

On 23 April 2021, the Company and the placing agent
entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which
the placing agent has conditionally agreed to place,
on a best effort basis, to not less than six placees,
for up to 580,000,000 placing shares at the placing
price of HK$0.1 per placing share (the “Placing”).
The placing of new shares was completed on
2 August 2021. The Company received net proceeds,
after deducting the related expenses and the other
related expenses, from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$58,000,000.

29. [RA (@)
et -

@)

(ii)

BERER-_ZFE_ZFTF=A4
ZTHMHHEHBTHERRRRE
FRAE BN ETERRE
X RZZBEZFEEF=ZA=Z+RX
B ARAEES20REREE
0.0003 B TR EBIRE O A —
A% 5 P& T 1E.0.0067%8 7T /) & B A
MEEETRANGEEITRA
BILTBERNEH - RHEH
NEBERART BB HA
ZECEF_A-+MmMAC
E-EF=-ARNBER-ZE-_ZF

FZAZ+MBENRA-

RZE_ZEFNARHE AR
REFERERIIREHE
Bt BRERBEEEKERE
BEERT DR RNBEREAR
E & %152,150,000% B & f%
5 EBEEEATRAEMD0.09
BIL-FTREERZZT_FF
NAZ+HRHEZK - ARQAHK
EIfC & FTIS SIEF B (KL H0Rk
HEASREMEBERAS) A
#713,700,000/8 7T

RZE-_—FWUA-_+=8"
ARalEEERERRE
E B EEREEA
KHEREBEE2 HWEERD
PRANBEAREALRERZ E
580,000,000 fie & i 5 - B2 &
BEAFKREEMRM.1ET ([H
Bl TREER =T =—
FNAZAZER AR EUE
fe & BT 18 3R B 58 (S H0 Bk 48
RS REMEERY) D
58,000,000 7T ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to
reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are: (i) in order to maintain its listing
on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; (i) to meet
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings; and (iii) minimum capital and liquid
capital requirements by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group complied with the above liquid
capital requirements.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing borrowing for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

29. R (&)

AEEREREANBERSR
EAREERKBERENRIRE
BREEHRESERERR
[O] R &% KAE

AEEEERBEEEAKRAN
Ko B 38 Bl AN 9 4E A 2L B 2 B
BARE - AEHBBIRKMK
B BITHE D BB BB | BA K
BOMER BERAEBRE
EEENRLPEHHTAEF
B REBERER-

HNERE AR E BN 2 & A E K
B () BEFREB TR LT
- -HERBNAREREAT
LR HI25% ;5 (i) W B 5B
fEEREM M B B HE: i) &
BEFRAEEHERZES®
RENZEEARRBESE
;J\Zo

BHE—_T_—FK-_FT_F
+-A=+-BLEE F£E
BT FRBESER.

rEESBAERNHBFPFELRRE
NEHBIFLARFREEHZ
FERMHEZRE BREBTAN
SERBE_FT_—FEK=F
—TF+_-_A=Z+—HLEFE
RN—EHFE25% 2 FRBTE -

fHiE R B 75325 RITAS AT AL AD
KEEE REE_T=_—FK
—EFEF+A=+—HL
FE AEBTEERTMAGTE
BE M BRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the special general meeting held on
23 December 2021, the Company adopted the New
Share Option Scheme and to terminate the Existing
Share Option Scheme for the purpose of rewarding
participants who have contributed to the Group and
to provide incentives to work towards the success of
the Company.

Under the Scheme, the Company’s board of
directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons (including directors, employees and
consultants) to subscribe for the Company’s shares.

The exercise price of the share options under
the Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and must be at least the higher of: (a) the
average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of offer of the share
options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the relevant date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and (c)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

30. AR B B 2 A3 R

IR ERE 2 BRER S
BREARABRER-_T-—%F
T A +=BETHRRE
BIRE @B ZRE  ARAR
MBS S WRIERER
PrEst 8- DA SRR B AR R B 4F th
BRlz28E YHBRFAN
REIZRINTME N

REZAE ARREFSAR
BRERAGERALT(BRE
S REKEMR)RTEREN
RBAREED -

ZETEI 2B ETEERAR
REFET YEAELRBATER
2E QEREHBRERD
B AEEXERBIME
BMEXRST L AR R F
BT E : (b) B BB
FHMRBIMERRERSH
ZARRB DK TE %A BA
REZEBR:  ROARA KRG Z
[ {E °
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% in nominal amount of the
aggregate of Shares in issue on the date of adoption
("Scheme Mandate Limit”).

Options previously granted under the New Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the terms
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as
renewed.

At any time, the maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options which
then has been granted and have yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in
the absence of Shareholders’ approval, in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An offer of the grant of an Option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant together
with a remittance of HK$1 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof. An Option may be exercise
during such period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant.
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30. LR B ER 2 R (&)

IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

BIEFERETSIRAQRE
] HAb BE AR AT &I FT IR B A9 PR
BERE RITEEITEITHR
SERNBEEGATEEBEBERN
AEEEITRHALEENI0%
([FrEIEELR]) -

SERREBHBRESE AR
AEMEBEREFERLZ
R (BREREE IR H KR
T -BEE#HE SRMKETE
ZBRRE) R ERE AR
BERBER T TIHEEAR-

PAE A B P AE R AR R L /E Y
BT - RIFFBRER & A
N E A HE s B AR AT 81 R
B RITE Z A BRE 1T
FERATHRITROD &S EE
ERITBBETHEEHTRN
30% °

EHBREZEOTRELA
A28 MIE M L 1B
TAEBEHMEN 2 LE - BRI
TRES SR BHRIEER
52 HR A7T 1 - e A5 BREAR e
B BB RS RATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-T-—S+-A=1+—HALtEE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 30. AR B E® 2 4R (80
Equity-settled share option scheme UREEE 2 BRETE
(continued) (&)

The following table disclose the details of the TREBEARAEBRENTS
Company's share options and the movements during NEREBE-_ZT-_—F+=A
the year ended 31 December 2021: =t—HEFERANES:
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1.1.2021 Cancelled/lapsed 31.12.2021
Exercise price i3 Grant Exercise  during the year RZB=-%
Category Date of grant per share Exercise period Notes —A-H  duringthe year  during the year REREHE/ t=A=1-A
LY REER ERORE TRAR it HATE REREH RERTE %% HAGE
Director
j £
Chow Hei Yin Terry 8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @) - 6,304,000 - - 6,304,000
A%E “R-£MANR “R--¥MANRE
“EC-ERALA
Huang Zhi 8 Aer 201 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ - 6,304,000 - - 6,304,000
Ev ZEC-EMANA
Zhu Yugi 8 May 2020 0.0780 ) 7,607,000 = = = 7,607,000
AFEH “E-FFRANR
ZEC_ERALA
Man Yuan 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
e “Z-TFRANR “3-FERF\RE
“B-CFRAtA
Ma Kin Ling 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
B “E-FFRANR “F-TFIANBE
“E--FRALA
Employee 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) 45,642,000 - - - 45,642,000
&8 “E-RFRANR “R-REIAN\AE
:;::Eﬁﬂfﬁ
8 April 2021 0.1066 8 April 2021 to 7 April 2023 @ = 50,432,000 - - 50,432,000
“F--5MANR “F--§¥MANRE
Z3-ZERALA
Consultants 17 April 2019 0.4720 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2021 (¢ 76,075,000 - - (76,075,000) -
Bf ZF-NEMATLA ZENEBATERE
ZEC-FRATAA
144,538,000 63,040,000 5 (76,075,000) 131,503,000
Exercisable at the end of the year RERTTH 131,503,000
Weighted average exercise price NETHAER HK$0.2854 HK$0.1066 HK$0.0917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

BE-ZT=

Equity-settled share option scheme

(continued)

—F+ZA=t-ALEE

The following table disclose the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2020:

30.

U ABER AR (&)
LIRS E 2 B IR EST S
(&)
TEREBRAQNABREMNFS
UWEREBEE - _FF+ - A
ST RLFEANE

Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
at 1.1.2020 lapsed during ~ at 31.12.2020
Exercise price RZB-%F Grant Exercise Share theyear ~ R-3-%%
Category Date of grant pershare  Exercise period —-A-8 duringtheyear duringtheyear  consolidation ~ REMHEH/ +-A=t-R
R RERE SRTEE REM HAGE RERRE RERTE RB&H% % HATE
Director
Ez
Malcolm Stephen 10 December 2014 0.1780 10 December 2014 to () 20,000,000 - - (19,000,000) (1,000,000) -
JACOBS-PATON 9 December 2020
ZE-mE+ZATH “3-RET-ATRZ
ZRCREETCANR
Zhu Yugi 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) - 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
RFH ZECRERAN “RC2ERANAE
ZE-ZFRRA
LuBei Lin 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) - 7,607,000 - - (7,607,000) -
o330 “ECRERAN “RCRERANAE
ZE-ZFRRA
Man Yuan 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) - 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
wE ZECRERAN “RC2ERANAE
ZE-ZFRRA
Ma Kin Ling 8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 ) - 7,607,000 - - - 7,607,000
it & ZECRERAN “RC2ERANAE
ZE-ZFRRA
Employee 10 December 2014 0.1780 10 December 2014 to (e 38,040,000 - - (36,138,000) (1,902,000) -
9 December 2020
- ZE-mE+ZA1R ZZ-RETZATRE
ZRoZEETCANA
8 May 2020 0.0780 8 May 2020 to 7 May 2022 el - 45,642,000 - - - 45,642,000
ZZC25RANA ZRC2ERANEE
ZRFRRA
Consultants 10 December 2014 0.1780 10 December 2014 to v 202,880,000 - - (192,736,000) (10,144,000) -
9 December 2020
Ef “2-mETZAH Z3-MET-ATRE
ZRCREETCANR
17 April 2019 0.0236 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2021 (¢) 1,521,500,000 - - (1,445,425,000) - 76,075,000
ZE-WERATHA ZZ-NWERATAZ
ZE--F¥MATRE
1,782,420,000 76,070,000 - (1,693,299,000) (20,653,000) 144,538,000
Exercisable at the end of the year RERATE 144,538,000
Weighted average exercise price METHTER HK$0.9300 HKS0.0780 HK$0.2854
notes: iz -
(a) 63,040,000 options granted on 8 April 2021 are (@) R-ZE-_—FMWANBHMER

immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 April
2021 was HK$0.106 per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

notes:

(b)

76,070,000 options granted on 8 May 2020 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 8 May
2020 was HK$0.078 per share.

1,521,500,000 options granted on 17 April 2019 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on
17 April 2019 was HK$0.0230 per share. As a result
of the share consolidation as set out in note 29, the
exercise price of the share options was adjusted from
HK$0.0236 per share to HK$0.4720 per share with
effect from 26 March 2020.

wrE MR MR

—F+ZA=+-BLEE

30. ARG AE# 2R (#)
IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

Hrat -

(b)

R-E-_FTFRANEHARE
276,070,00015 BE IR #E B A I
tHHARNES R - e AR A2
BREBEZAARRRBRMHRZ
E_TZFERANBZUTES
FH0.078B T

RZE—NFNA++ERME
H 2 1,521,500,0001) & A% #&
ERREBEHESEE 26
ERERLBHZAIARR
BHOR-_ZE—NAFMWA++AH
ZWHERER0.0230 T o
AR 29T E R D & P2 &
2 AT _FTFE=ZA -+
AR - BERECITFEERER
0.0236/8 LA 2 A& 80.4720
IT e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—=%

B 795 R 2 B =

——F+-A=+—BLFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

notes:

(d)

Out of the 405,400,000 options granted on
10 December 2014, a total of 126,800,000 options
are vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and
(v) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up
to 9 December 2020; and a total of 278,600,000
options are exercisable from 10 December 2014
up to 9 December 2020. As a result of the share
consolidation as set out in note 29(i), the exercise
price of the share options was adjusted from
HK$0.1780 per share to HK$3.5600 per share with
effect from 26 March 2020.

A total of 38,040,000 options are vested in 5 tranches
as to (i) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2015
up to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2016 up to 9 December 2020; (iii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2017 up to 9 December
2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2018
up to 9 December 2020; and (v) 20% exercisable
from 10 December 2019 up to 9 December 2020.
As a result of the share consolidation as set out in
note 29(i), the exercise price of the share options was
adjusted from HK$0.1780 per share to HK$3.5600 per
share with effect from 26 March 2020.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

30. LR B ER 2 R (&)

IR AR 2 B IR 8
(&)

Bt -

(d)

(&)

RZE—NWF+_A+HFAR
i 2405,400,0001) B A% 4 &
A 126, 800 L0001 B& A%
D AHEE : (1)20% A7 R
—=F— ﬂﬁz"f— ﬂ—'—El:I:—?
—EFE+ AN BHMITE:

(i20% AR T —XNF+=
At+RE-_ZE-_ZTF+-Ah
BHIM T (iii)20% AT A —

E—+tF+-_A+HE=-Z
—“EFE+ - ANBHMTE:
(iv)20% AR =ZZE—N\F+ =
A+RE-_ZT-_ZT&+_-_AA
HESE 1T & (v)20% AT TR —
T-NF+-_A+BE=-ZT=
TE+-ANBEBETE: N
4 $£278,600,00017 3 % #
AR-_E—NE+_A+BZE
—E-FEF+ - ANABEBET
185 o B BT 5E290) FTELAR 0 &

g BT _TF=A
“HRBE BREZITEE

HER0.1780B THE BT R
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& +£38,040,00017 BB JE#E T
AMEB()20% RN -_2—F
F+-A+HE-_ZT_TfF
+= HjLE%FWTE (ii)20%
—.l-b_/\\ /\ﬂi—f— H+E|:l:
15_7¢+ AN BERTT
5 (IiN20% AR T —+4F
+ZA+HEEZZE_ZTF+=
AN BEIETE : (iv)20% A A
ZE-NFE+ZA+RHRE=E
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AtHEZE-ZE=-FEF+=-Ah
E%ﬁﬁ@ EFWﬁMQW
BERHhezEE =
Ei_ﬂ_+ﬂai,%h%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

Notes.: (continued)

(f)

Out of the 824,560,000 options granted on
10 December 2014, a total of 469,160,000 options
are vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and
(v) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up
to 9 December 2020; and a total of 355,400,000
options are exercisable from 10 December 2014
up to 9 December 2020. As a result of the share
consolidation as set out in note 29(i), the exercise
price of the share options was adjusted from
HK$0.1780 per share to HK$3.5600 per share with
effect from 26 March 2020.

wrE MR MR

—F+ZA=+-BLEE

30. ARG AE# 2R (#)
IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

Hrat: (%)

()

RZE—NWEF+-_A+HMK
H 2824,560,00017 B A% # &
b & 469,160,000 B &
BTy AREE: (1)20% AT R
—EFE+ - ANBEBITE:
(i20% AR T —R"F+=
A+HEZZE-_ZEF+=A
H B ERITE : (i) 20% 7]
—E—+tF+ZA+RE=ZZ
—EF+ - ANBEETE:
(iV)20% IR =ZZFE—NF+ =
B+HEBE-_ZT-_ZEF+-8A
HHEARITE & (v)20% AT =
Z-NE+ZRA+RE=ZZ=
TE+-ANBHEBEITE: A
& & #355,400,0001) 88 A% 4
AAR—ZE—NF+-_A+AHZE
ZEZTF+Z ANABMET
18 o /B AP 3E290) PRELAR 0 &
P& B2 FF= A
—t+HR EREZTEE
HEA%0.17808 T AL AT K
3.5600/8 T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

No share option was exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2020: 1
year). On 8 April 2021 and 8 May 2020, 63,040,000
and 76,070,000 share options with fair value of
HK$2,819,000 and HK$2,520,000 were granted
respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial
Option Pricing model. The inputs into the model are

as follows:

Weighted average share price mEFHRKRE
Weighted average exercise price iEFHITEE
Expected volatility TE B 18
Expected life TEETFH

Risk free rate = 3 B ) X
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B 5 2

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

30. LR B ER 2 R (&)

IR A E 2 B IR T 8
(&)

REBEE-_ZTE-_—FR_ZE-_F
F+-_A=+—BHLEFELE
BEBREETE RNERE KT
FoBRENMETIFGRE
HERAE—F(ZZEFF:
—F) R-ZZT-—FMWAN
Bl -_ZE-_ZFFHANH"
63,040,00013 }%76,070,00017
NEED R A2,819,000% T &
2,520,000 T 2 BERREE B
ﬁ o

ZERNFEDNFER B HE
TFEEBAGE - ZER A 8 A X
b Z N

2021 2020
0.1060 0.0780
0.1066 0.0780

86% 85%

2 2
0.14% 0.37%
0% 0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=%

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 30, UR M AERB AR (&

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. The assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on management’s best estimate. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market vesting condition or non-
market performance condition associated with the
options granted.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives
for helping the Group expand its business network,
acquire and explore new business projects and
opportunities. The fair value of service received
in return for share options granted could not be
estimated reliably and as a result, the fair value is
measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

wrE MR MR

S—E+ZRA=t-HLEE

IR EEE
(#&)

T8 HA IR 0 AR SRR A A (&
1A B P #E DD 4 1 39 ) 64 4 A &

2 2 IBIRERT &

8) URELAHMAEEMNE
HA R ROR 08 3R B (E (] S E) 1F

HAE - FAHI R TJL/U_EHQQ
RELE ARFEBRENRD
BER& TJEQBAAE'EE’]E—THE
it TEBRAZ2BEBRNEME
fERIBXRFERLEBEMG-

BEESREBREMARNT
55 BRI RIET IS RIBIGRMT -

ETEBRZEREDERKRS
EAEEBAHEZEBASL K
BRYEREBER R#EN
H2E) o BIMERE X H B AR A T Uk
B RBN R FETEREMG
FOEE AFELKE2EDR
HEREN A TEFTZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-E-_—F+-A=+—-BHLEE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31.
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other payables
Amounts due to
subsidiaries

Net current assets
Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
R BARIZIRE

REEE
Be  FANREAER
H At [l WK TR
& W PR /B8 2 B 508
Be RRITHES

RBAE
eI S )
H A & 5 5K IR
J& 1~ PR /B8 X B SRIE

RBEEFSE
EEFH
R A< I A%
EEEN
fri 18

MRS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf

by:

ZHU Yuqi
KFH
Director

EF

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

DAz BBk R K A
w2

(a) A1 F 2z BN K

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
179 178
4,966 1,591
90,586 94,004
41,407 1,228
136,959 96,823
3,285 3,851
35,668 34,636
38,953 38,487
98,006 58,336
98,185 58,514
8,958 5,477
89,227 53,037
98,185 58,514

BHREER_E-__F=A
—tHEEEERKET
AR T EEREREE:

CHOW Hei Yin Terry

5L 3
Director

E
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B1.ARKRB 2 BERRER R
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HE2E (|
COMPANY (continued)
(b) Reserve movement in the Company (b) AATlz#EEEH
Share
Share  Contributed options
Premium surplus reserve

RiEE AARR  BRERS
(note 32(b)  (note 32(b)  (note 32(h)

) (i) (v)  Accumulated
(W)  (WEsm) (R0 losses Total
(i) (i) W) iR aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET TET

At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z5-F-H 57,856 522,104 23,89 (563,171) 40,684
Loss and total comprehensive income AEEEERZENRAE

for the year - - - (2,604) (2,604)
Placing of shares (note 29/i) RORE (Hz290) 12,437 = = = 12,437
Share options lapsed BREAN - - (7.419) 7.419 5
Recognition of equity-settled share ERURELEL R

based payments (note 30) BERZIMFR Wi30) - = 2,520 = 2,520
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R=F-%E+-A=1-H

R=F--F-A-H 70,293 522,104 18,9% (558,356) 53,037

Loss and total comprehensive income TEEBERZENGER

for the year - - - (19,694) (19,694)
Placing of shares (note 29(i) ROBE (Hit290)) 53,065 = = = 53,065
Share options lapsed BRELN - = (16,737) 16,737 =
Recognition of equity-settled share BN RAEET AR

based payments (note 30) BERZRR(HE0) = = 2,819 = 2,819
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-F=+-H 123,358 522,104 5,078 (561,313) 89,227
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

32. RESERVES 32 f#&

(a) Group (a) &

The amounts of the Group's reserves and PN

movements therein are presented in the C
consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income and consolidated Bl

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) f&

(i) Share premium ()

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and
after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares. Pursuant to the
Companies Law of the Bermuda, funds in
the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(if) Other capital reserve (i)

Other capital reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital and the share premium
of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

£E

EEEBLBERAS
SARBREME TR
HERRGAREEDERE

BeHEEREN
B @B

KR aEEDERESR
BEREEZERETR
7 EEHBRERLET
N BT AT EE
2B -REABRER
AE AR RIRMDRE
ENESAIDKTAR

AR HEEEEES
K EH ARQRIAE
BE—MREBBEFRE
B2 &

E At &A1 e

HMEARFERHIERA
SEWENBARZH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

32. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Group and
the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to
the reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(v) Share options reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.

32 f#f&E (®|)
(b) FEEZHEERBEHN (&)

(iif) A & Br

BABRBNEARED
BITRAHMERRES
#H 2 18 X A e e Y
MEAREEFENE
B e

(iv) 225t iy

BEHEEEMARR
BRI EBMBRERE
HEHSNE ZHE o L
BRI G M RRI T
A(b) FT 8L A & 5T R BE
B e

(v) FERERE

BREREBLIRRT
AEEES EENME
B ARTTEBBENE R
HAEET BB R FE
RIS MR
4(0) MBI AR EE IR A
Eift 2 NRPTRAE S
ATEUR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3BAAFETEMBATZHF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15
Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at KATEENREB QTR EREH
the end of the reporting period are set out below. RZFHBEYWT -
Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fi ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
il Pk Lg% g5l ERfTRE G Eidl] IEXH
2021 2020
Directly held B 75 -
China Guoxin SunCorp Financial  British Virgin Ordinary Us$100 70% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited Island (“BVI")
THACHESRARERAT EBRLHS([R TRR 100%7 RELERK
BEZEER])
WELL SMOQTH LIMITED BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ABRAER  EBR 10,000%70 RERR

Indirectly held BZ# 5 -

SUNCORP GLOBAL LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of telephones and
related products
HERRARAA (3 Lk BT SENEBERES
Worldwide Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Processing and trading of
(Hong Kong) Limited used computer-related
components
BRETHE (BR)BRAA  BR Rk 187 “TERABANRER
CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business
PRiEE (BR)BRAR 3 LRk 10,000,000 T RERE
Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities
brokerage, placing and
underwriting services
HEEFARDA B Bk 76,000,000/ ¢ REESEL KER
Bk
BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% B2B cross-border
LIMITED e-commerce
HRARERAH Bk Lk 100787 PRUCRERTTHK

188  SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7#efis AR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

Equity-settled share-based payment

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
equity-settled share-based payment expense
of approximately HK$2,819,000 (2020:
approximately HK$2,520,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flow were, or future
cashflows will be classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

3BAAFETEMBATZHF

5 (40

ARBEERR ERATIIARSE
BzHBARBAKE XA
HEEELETERE -KARQTA
EEZER JIHEMHMERT
ZHAEHH RN IR

RER R FERNEMERE - & E
NAGEZEITEEBE S

. BB EMEBKRME

(a) EXFHERS

PV EN R F-3
Z 1%

HE_Z-_—F+= A
=+ —HLEFE UABRARE
ERHABERZARAX
#) /42,819,000 L (- &
— T4 : 42,520,000/ 7T)
TR EERERPER -

(b) MEXBELEZBEH
iR

TERALAEERERE
EBNAEEY BRAR
NOFRE BE - ME XM
EEMNBEDNAEREERE
ERHARKREREHR
AEBHEERLRERN
DHEERERDELEZE

& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=-Z=

—E+=A=t+-ALFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

At 1 January 2021

Interest charged

Interest paid

COVID-19 Related rent
concessions received

Financing cash flows

Other changes:

Additions to lease
liabilities

At 31 December 2021

WZE-—F—HF—H

2 KCERF B
ERFHE

B4 CoVID-1948F8
HeRE
HERERE
Hh 2
NEHEERE

R-ZE-—F

+-A=+—H

190 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7#efis AR AR

. REBREREBRME (4D

(b) REXBELE2EEY

BR (#8)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
BITEX HEEE st
(note 27) (note 26)
(K&E27) (Bt3E26)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FTAT
3,584 675 4,259
284 186 470
(284) (186) (470)
- (29) (29)
(679) (1,512) (2,191)
- 4,232 4,232
2,905 3,366 6,271
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M.BERERERMETE (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEXBELEcEEY
financing activities (continued) Bk (&)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
RITER HEEE st
(note 27) (note 26)
(K&E27) (Bt3E26)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZEF—-H—H 181 2,733 2,914
Interest charged 2 EUH & 90 98 188
Interest paid EHE (90) (98) (188)
COVID-19 Related rent 2 W COVID-1948 &
concessions received HERE - (67) (67)
Financing cash flows MERERE 3,403 (1,991) 1,412
At 31 December 2020 NZE-_TF
+-A=+—H 3,584 675 4,259
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement
of cash flows for lease comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows BRELHE N
Within financing cash flows BREER &M

mem

These amounts relate to the following:

Lease rental paid ENHEERS

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

. EBRERERMET (&)

()

HEZHRERHERE

HFAGREHERERANE
Ffﬁﬂi"fﬂ’]i% BREATH
15 -

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
186 98
1,512 1,991
1,698 2,089

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
1,698 2,089
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—ZT_-_—F+-A=+—HILLFE

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. AR E

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Suncorp
Industrial Limited (in liquidation) (“SIL"), a former
subsidiary of the Company, through its solicitors
served on two wholly-owned, inactive subsidiaries
of the Company (namely, Mondial Communications
Limited ("MCL") and Suncorp Communications
Limited (“SCL")), statutory demands for repayment
of an amount of HK$91,177,872 allegedly due from
MCL to SIL and an amount of HK$128,785,748
allegedly due from SCL to SIL. Both MCL and SCL
denied the indebtedness allegedly due from them to
SIL as claimed in the statutory demands. By Court
Order dated 1 June 2011, the liquidators of SIL were
sanctioned to take out legal proceedings in the name
and on behalf of SIL against the Company, MCL
and/or SCL. The Company had disposed of its entire
interest in MCL and SCL in April 2014. According
to Form 98, Notice to Creditors and Contributories
of Interntion to Apply for Release, Destruction of
Books of Accounts and Documents and Dissolution
of the Company, dated on 8 November 2019, SIL has
submitted their application to finalise the liquidation,
and based on Written Resolutions of the Committee
of Inspection, the application has been approved.
No legal expenses has incurred during the reporting
period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

REE-_ZT——%+=A
=+—HIEFE FREEER
~El (R8T ([FRrREX]
HARNRRZAMBAR) @A
HEMRAAAGMEEETE
Brz2EWBAR (ANBES
BAABRAG ([BERBEAM])
RFEBAERAA([HEE
RxFEEATERKEGE B
KEMATHRIA: EHEEERA
AMER FTEEZX 291,177,872
BT EIE - DA R IR TR T R B A e
¥ HEE ¥ 2128,785,7488 7T
RIE -BERBALKNMBENYG
BRAEACERERERMERE
BERBARTEBANENST
NREEXCEE-RERBAC
T——FXRXA—HZERDS
TEEEX 2R AEEUGTE
BEECZRERRERARG B
ERBAR/LHEBARELR
FERF - ARAER-_ZE—
FMAREERBERBAK
B2 ER - RIE R
AE_E-—NE+—ANBE#H
BEREARLNEABERBFER
AR E R X RBEEAR QA
BENFEBR FTHEEXER
REAFEZEEE RMBEREZ
BEEMEEABRR RFEDEN
N BEMETEELELRZE
)Eﬁo

fr E XA IREE N RS H
R AEEITEERIRAE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. E A EKIE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of RMEHRSITNERRESE
the reporting period but not yet incurred are as ZEREENT
follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR E - 2,314
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BEALTRS
In addition to those related party transactions and BrécE B mKREMIB o ETE
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BHEBEANTRS RESHIN K
financial statements, the Group had the following SEFRNEBEATHRSN
transactions with its related parties during the year: ™
Compensation of key management EEEE 2
personnel

Key management personnel are the directors of the EREZEREARARAIER B
Company. The remuneration of key management ZERFANZFHMOT
personnel during the year was as follows:

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Short-term benefits 5 HATE A 1,287 2,253
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE=-ZT—

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the COVID-19 outbreak in the second half
year of 2021, a series of precautionary and strict
control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the globe. The Group is paying
close attention to the development of, and the
disruption to business and economic activities caused
by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact
on the financial position, cash flows and operating
results of the Group. Given the dynamic nature of the
COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of its impacts on the Group's
financial position, cash flows and operating results
at the date on which these financial statements are
authorised for issue.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2022.

38.
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Financial Summary

£

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-HA=1t-HLEE

Bt 5 41 2=

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—T_-—F+_-A=+—HLLFE
RESULTS

Revenue Wz

Loss for the year AEEEE

Attributable to: THALEMR:

Owners of the Company N/NSE 2N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities reE
Net assets FEE

Equity attributable to owners of R E% B AFEMG
the Company s

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7eERI B R A 7

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET THER
350,043 223,749 202,546 173,692 199,967
(217,084) (24,842) (42,766) (70,107) (58,840)
(217,084) (24,842) (42,766) (70,107) (58,753)
EERAEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-BA=+-H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET TET TAERT
423,897 436,572 364,901 299,153 328,982
(54,356) (96,853) (55,976) (44,121) (71,974)
369,541 339,719 308,925 255,032 257,008
369,541 339,719 308,925 255,032 257,096
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